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REVENUE COLLECTION
Our key mandate as the Board is to ensure revenue 
collection for the Province. We have remained 
the second largest revenue collector in the 
Province and have seen an 11% over collection 
in our revenue for the 2012/2013 fi nancial year. 
The Board continues to work hard to ensure that 
we also exceed our projections during the current 
fi nancial year.

SOCIAL INVESTMENT
Having reviewed various commitments by our 
licensees towards CSI in the Province, the Board 
has adopted a position that we need to ensure 
that such CSI commitments must be informed 
and/or aligned to the provincial government’s 
key priorities. We have seen such contribution 
being made by our casino licensee, Afrisun KZN 
(Pty) Ltd (Sibaya Casino), towards the Lungisisa 
Indlela Village (LIV) in building a school. This is one 
of the projects that have received attention and 
support by our provincial government. We are 
also having discussions with Tsogo Sun (Suncoast 
Casino) regarding a signifi cant contribution 
towards another key project by the provincial 
government. It therefore goes without saying that 
all other licensees who are fi nancially benefi ting 
from the Province and its people should be able 
to participate and give back to the societies they 
gain from. And as said above, this should be done 
in line with KZN government’s priorities.

INTERNAL OPERATIONS
In the past year, the merger process was 
concluded. It is the Board’s priority to ensure that 
we are able to provide suitable accommodation 
for our staff and this project will receive specifi c 
focus in the forthcoming year. We believe that 
in order for our staff to adopt the same culture, 
ethic, commitment towards their work and also 
enhance service delivery to our licensees, we 
must have a conducive working environment. 

CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
I am delighted to report on a challenging but 
successful year for the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming 
and Betting Board. Our unrelenting focus on 
operational performance has meant that we have 
been able to identify new gambling initiatives, 
substantially increase revenue and see the 
implementation of our transformation mandate. 

NEW INITIATIVES
The Board resolved to explore other possible 
gambling initiatives. This has called for continuous 
engagement with different sectors of the industry, 
research and investigations being conducted by 
the Board and strategic direction being spelt out 
in order to enable implementation. The positive 
feedback and approach we have received 
from the industry, it’s willingness to negotiate and 
rectify actions and/or decisions taken  in the past 
has assisted in ensuring that we see progress and 
can therefore expect a signifi cant growth in some 
sectors of the industry, such as the Bingo and the 
LPM industry. During the year the fi rst Bingo hall 
was opened in the Province. 

TRANSFORMATION
It is pleasing to report that we have seen 
commitment from the majority of our licenced 
bookmakers. We have in the past year approved 
a transformation application for the largest 
bookmaker in the Province. We are also in 
the process of fi nalizing other transformation 
transactions. The individual engagements with 
bookmakers have assisted in clarifying issues that 
affect each business and coming up with proposals 
on how best to ensure transformation within 
that specifi c structure. As transformation of any 
business is a sensitive matter, full and continuous 
discussions with the industry have taken place. 
The Board remains committed to these 
engagements with licensees and will continue to 
ensure that this legislative mandate given to us 
comes to fruition. We look forward to reviewing the 
plans of action, progress and commitments from 
all bookmakers as per the adopted timeframes.

The organisational performance levels of the 
entity have exceeded our expectations during 
the year and we have no doubt we can only 
improve from there. We acknowledge that some 
of our defi ciencies are caused by the outdated 
IT systems that are meant to talk to the industry 
we regulate. It is through the business process re-
engineering project, adopted by the Board, that 
we believe these matters will be addressed.
I can boldly say that the good governance, strong 
fi nancial management, and the enforcement of 
performance reporting in our organisation have 
led to us getting a clean audit opinion from the 
Auditor-General. Whilst we celebrate, we also 
acknowledge the challenge it places on the 
Board to maintain this opinion. 

STAKEHOLDER SUPPORT
We are grateful for the support we have received 
from our key stakeholders, the MEC responsible 
for Gambling in the Province Dr Z L Mkhize and 
the Director-General. As a public entity, our 
obligation to comply with the PFMA can never 
be compromised and it is with the support we 
have received from Provincial Treasury that we 
have maintained the highest level of compliance 
with Corporate Governance principles.  We are 
grateful to the HOD, Mr S. Magagula and his team 
for the continued support given to the Board.

APPRECIATION
To the Chief Executive Offi cer, who is in her fi rst 
year of offi ce and has provided unquestionable 
leadership in the implementation of the Board’s 
vision, against all odds, the management team 
who have willingly made sacrifi ces during the 
tough period to achieve the results we now see, 
the staff of KZNGBB, thank you and keep it up!

S.N. ZULU
CHAIRPERSON
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FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
The key fi nancial highlights are as follows:
• Tax amendments to the Gaming and Betting 

Tax Act that was effective 1 November 2012 
which had the effect of increasing the revenue 
collected for the Provincial Government by the 
KZNGBB. The Board engaged with the MEC for 
Finance, Provincial Treasury and the Gambling 
Industry on the revision of the Tax Act and the 
Taxes have been gazetted

• The actual revenue collected and transferred 
to the Offi ce of the Premier amounted to 
R447,7 million which is 111% of the budgeted 
amount. An amount of R44 million has been 

over collected for the 2012/2013 fi nancial year.  
The growth in Taxes collected was attributable 
to amendments in Tax Legislation as well as real 
growth in the sector. 

• The entity realised savings from the 
implementation of cost cutting initiatives. 

The key performance highlights are: 
• The 2012/13 fi nancial year was used as a year 

for the Board to give effect to the merger and 
to set out Policies and processes for the entity 
and a year of instilling the correct fundamentals 
to ensure that KZNGBB becomes a key player 
in contributing to the Province and leader in 

I am delighted to present the fi nancial and 
performance results for the KwaZulu-Natal 
Gaming and Betting Board for the period ending 
31 March 2013.
Looking back on the entities performance over 
the past fi nancial year, the Board oversaw the 
successful integration of the previous entities viz. 
the erstwhile Gambling Board and the Bookmakers 
Control Committee. This was a year in which the 
Board focused on a number of interventions as 
outlined in its strategic objectives. In executing its 
strategy the Board was guided by its legislative 

mandate and policies that have been adopted 
by the government.
Notwithstanding the continued challenge in the 
economic environment and the effects of the 
global economic crisis on the gambling sector, the 
gambling industry in KwaZulu-Natal grew by 11% 
in terms of Gross Gaming Revenue. Consequently 
tax revenue collected exceeded the budgeted 
collection by R 44 million. The KwaZulu-Natal 
Gaming and Betting Board remains the second 
largest revenue generator for the Province of 
KwaZulu-Natal. 

The Board identifi ed the following as its strategic objectives:

DIVISIONAL INITIATIVES TO DELIVER KEY BOARD DELIVERABLES
• To license, investigate and roll out new gambling initiatives

• To conduct revenue and compliance monitoring audits within the gaming industry 
• To ensure effective legal services and risk management 

• To ensure good governance and compliance
• To minimise illegal gambling, fraud and corruption

• To ensure effective management of the Board’s fi nancial resources in line with the statutory requirements 

The following initiatives were undertaken at an operational level to fulfi l and deliver on the strategic objectives. 
Management has focused its efforts on delivering the Boards Annual Performance Plan. There was a 
signifi cant improvement in the performance of the entity by the operational units.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
the Gambling Regulatory Industry. The Annual 
performance plan was approved by the Board 
in the 2012 fi nancial year and management set 
out to achieving the objectives encompassed 
within this plan Some of the signifi cant 
accomplishments are:
• One of the Boards key focus areas was 

to oversee the rolling out of new gaming 
initiatives. During the period KwaZulu-Natal 
saw the rolling out of its fi rst Bingo Hall in 
Amanzimtoti (Galaxy Bingo). Further roll out is 
anticipated from this industry.

• A comprehensive review of the Board Rules in 
line  with the implementation of the KwaZulu-
Natal Gaming and Betting Act No 8, and a 
risk based approach was considered when 
reviewing these rules

• The adoption of an Enterprise wide risk 
management framework to ensure a risk 
based approach applied and risk tolerance 
observed as part of Gaming activities’

• Receiving a “clean” audit opinion from the 
Auditor-General for the current year;

• Financial Management, Governance 
and Risk Management in line with the 
recommendations in King III, over the past 
fi nancial year the governance, risk and 
fi nancial management received attention.

TRANSFORMATION
The KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Board 
approved a set of minimum standards for the 
transformation of the Horse Racing and Betting 
Sector.  These will impact the licensees as follows:-
• All Bookmakers will be required to attain an HDI 

ownership level of 26%

• HDI owners will be required to have the 
requisite management control that refl ects their 
ownership status

• Bookmakers will be required to have Skills 
development plans that will be monitored by 
the Board

• All licensees will be required to have 
Socio economic development plans and 
implementation will be monitored by the Board

Continuous engagements will be held with 
all licensees who request assistance with the 
understanding, planning and implementation of 
their transformation plans. The meetings are to 
ensure a better understanding of the guidelines 
and a fi rmer commitment to the Board’s 
transformation minimum standards. 
The Board entered into a memorandum 
of understanding with Ithala Development 
Corporation. Ithala will assist with funding for HDI 
applicants who meet their requirements.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
I would like to extend my gratitude to the 
Chairperson of the Board Mrs S Zulu and the 
Board members who have worked long hours 
and provided support and direction to the 
organisation. I would also like to thank the staff and 
the management team who have sacrifi ced and 
spent long hours which contributed in achieving 
these results. The hard work can be seen in the 
results that have been achieved over the year.

P. N. BALOYI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
We are pleased to present our report for fi nancial 
year the year ended 31 March 2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
During the fi nancial year the Audit Committee 
consisted of the members listed hereunder and 
met at least four (4) times per annum as per 
its terms of reference approved in the audit 
committee charter. During the current year two 
of the members resigned and two new members 
were appointed. 

PREVIOUS MEMBERS

Name of Member Number of meetings 
attended

Mr N. Mhlongo 
(Chairperson) 6 out of 6

Mr S. Nzuza 4 out of 6 [a x 2]
Mr V. Ramphal 4 out of 6 [a x 2]
Mrs B. Mdladla 6 out of 6

CURRENT MEMBERS

Name of Member
Number of meetings 

attended in new 
fi nancial year

Prof S. Perumal 
(Chairperson) 1 out of 1

Mrs S. Ngidi 0 out of 1 [a x 1]
Mr V. Ramphal 1 out of 1
Mrs B. Mdladla 1 out of 1

a = Member tendered an apology for the meeting[s] 

DATES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
• 02 April 2012 
• 07 May 2012 
• 24 May 2012 
• 25 July 2012 
• 18 October 2012 
• 08 February 2103

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
The Audit Committee hereby reports that it has 
complied with its responsibilities arising from section 
51(1) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. 
Furthermore the Audit Committee reports that 
it has adopted appropriate formal terms of 
reference as its audit committee charter, has 
regulated its affairs in compliance with this 
charter and has discharged all its responsibilities 
as contained therein. 

RISK MANAGEMENT
Following the comprehensive risk assessment 
exercise undertaking during October 2012, 
the Board has developed risk mitigation 
strategies to monitor unacceptable risks. The 
enterprise risk management processes include 
the Fraud Prevention and Response Plan. The 
process was facilitated by the Legal and Risk 
Management unit. The Social, Ethics Risk and 
Transformation Committee provided oversight 
on risk management activities which resulted 
in strengthening risk management mitigation 
strategies.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
In line with the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and 
the King III Report on Corporate Governance 
requirements, Internal Audit provides the 
Audit Committee and management with 
the assurance that the internal controls are 
appropriate and effective. This is achieved 
by means of the risk management process, as 
well as the identification of corrective actions 
and suggested enhancement to the controls 
and processes. Based on the various reports by 
Internal Audit, the Audit Report on the Annual 
Financial Statements and the management 
report of the Auditor-General, it was noted that 
matters were reported indicating deficiencies in 
the systems of internal control.
The Audit Committee noted signifi cant progress 
being made to improve the internal control system 

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the 
Internal Audit Charter. The Audit Committee also 
approved the audit plan and the work carried out 
by Internal Audit to ensure that the action plans in 
place mitigate the risks on matters reported to the 
Audit Committee.
Internal Audit reports on and provides assurance 
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of 
internal fi nancial controls, internal controls and 
the management of risk across in the organisation, 
and has provided such assurance that they 
have no reason to believe that any material 
breakdowns within the internal controls system and 
risk management, as identifi ed, have not been 
addressed or are in the process of being addressed.
Furthermore it was confi rmed that the Internal 
Audit scope was risk based and included 
management recommendations.  
The Audit Committee has received and reviewed 
the quarterly internal audit reports and concur 
that Internal Audit has addressed risks pertinent 
to the Board in its internal audit reviews. The Audit 
Committee is satisfi ed that the internal audit function 
is operating effectively and that it has addressed 
the risks pertinent to the entity in its audit.

AUDITOR-GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA 
The Audit Committee has met with Auditor-
General South Africa to ensure that there are no 
unresolved issues.

 
PROFESSOR S PERUMAL (D.COM) 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
31 JULY 2013

in the organisation. It also noted that management 
has implemented adequate controls in most 
areas within the organisation to provide 
reasonable assurance that all major inherent 
risks are appropriately identifi ed; managed and 
applicable legislation is adhered to. 

MANAGEMENT MONTHLY AND QUARTERLY 
REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF PFMA
The audit committee is satisfi ed with the contents 
and quality of monthly and quarterly reports 
prepared and issued by the Accounting Authority 
of the Board during the year under review.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Audit Committee has: 
• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual 

fi nancial statements to be included in the 
annual report, with the Auditor-General and the 
Accounting Offi cer; 

• Reviewed the information on the predetermined 
objectives to be included in the annual report. 

• Reviewed the entity compliance with legal and 
regulatory provisions;

• Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management 
report and management’s response thereto;

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts 
the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the Annual 
Financial Statements, and is of the opinion that 
the audited Annual Financial Statements be 
accepted and read together with the report of 
the Auditor-General.

INTERNAL AUDIT 
The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring 
that the Internal Audit function is independent 
and has the necessary resources, standing and 
authority within the organisation to enable it to 
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee also 
oversees the interaction between Internal Audit, 
External Auditor and Management, and ensures 
that the relationships are productive and add 
value to the organisation.
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INTRODUCTION
Our main reporting objective is to improve our 
disclosure year on year to provide our stakeholders 
with a balanced understanding of our business.
The KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Board 
(Board) is committed to conducting business 
and regulating the gaming and betting industry 
in KwaZulu-Natal by practicing high corporate 
governance standards which contribute to on-
going sustainability of the organisation and 
enhances long term stakeholder value creation. The 
Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the 
Board and organisation adhere to sound corporate 
governance principles while also considering the 
interests of other stakeholders such as licensees, 
employees, suppliers and our principal.
Governance goes beyond compliance with 
codes, legislation and regulatory requirements. 
Management strives to create and maintain a 
culture of good governance across the business, 

linked to the Board’s business philosophy which 
incorporates its purpose, vision and values. 
This year the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting 
Board is reporting on the basis of integrated reporting 
for the fi rst time.  We have identifi ed the need for 
systems that accurately measure and capture our 
non-fi nancial data. Implementation will take time 
and practice and in assessing and making material 
available on the organisation, our strategies, 
governance, performance and prospects we 
hope to better understand what metrics will help 
attain and measure the Boards strategic intent and 
thereby to convey our integrated story. We are 
acutely aware of where we are and the amount of 
work that still needs to be done.

APPLICATION OF KING III PRINCIPLES
The Board confi rms that it has, except where 
noted, in all material respects applied the 2009 
King Code of Governance Principles (King III).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
GOVERNANCE DEVELOPMENTS IN 2012
Corporate governance processes continued to be reviewed and improved during the period to align with internal 
requirements and to ensure on-going adherence to legislation, regulation and best governance practices.
The Board approved a governance framework with structures and processes and the following are 
enhancements to that framework:

GOVERNANCE ELEMENT GOVERNANCE DEVELOPMENT
Social, Ethics, Risk and 
Transformation Committee

The Committee reviewed its written charter and amended it to include 
the mandate to monitor the management of risk. Developed its working 
methodology and is beginning to outline its monitoring programme for the 
year ahead.

Audit Committee The Committee Charter amended to refl ect changes in responsibilities in 
terms of King III, the Companies Act particularly in relation to monitoring the 
risk posed by fraud and information technology (IT).

Service Level Agreement There is a Service Level Agreement between the Offi ce of the Premier and the 
Board which defi nes the relationship and determines reporting requirements.

PFMA compliance There is a compliance checklist in place to monitor levels of compliance with 
PFMA.

Board appointment One Board member appointed as an independent non-executive Board 
Member, and serves on the Social, Ethics, Risk and Transformation (SERT) and 
Finance and IT Committees.  

Director induction A more substantive and integrated induction process developed for new 
directors including introduction to the governance framework, structure, 
material policies, relevant legislation, fi nancial information and visits to 
facilities. 

Information Technology (IT) 
Governance

IT governance framework and strategy developed, focusing mainly on the 
strategic alignment, value delivery and risk management of IT resources, the 
existence of IT Steercom and Reports to the Board through Fincom.

Internal audit Confi rmed that internal audit approach is appropriately risk based. Internal 
Audit function supports management’s responsibility for ensuring adequacy 
of internal controls and processes.

Risk Management Risk management and monitoring enhanced by ensuring alignment between 
the top risk identifi ed by the SERT (Risk) Committee and the key risks refl ected 
by risk owners in their risk registers. Also appointed an Operational Risk 
Committee with risk champions from Divisions which will report to the SERT 
Committee on risk management and controls.

Integrated reporting Commenced integrated reporting journey.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
THE BOARD
The Board is mandated to ensure that all gambling 
authorised under the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and 
Betting Act, 8 of 2010, (the Act) is conducted in 
a manner which promotes the integrity of the 
gambling industry and does not cause harm to 
the public interest. 
To achieve this mandate the Board must continue 
to licence existing and new gambling initiatives in 
a responsible manner, it must monitor and regulate 
the licensed industry and facilitate revenue 
collection for the Province from the industry. In 
doing so the Board must take account of social 
factors such as the protection of people who have 
been identifi ed as problem gamblers as well as 
society in general from proliferation of gambling, 
particularly in the stressed economic environment 
in which it operates. The Board has also taken its 
mandate in respect of transformation particularly 
seriously and it has set targets and performance 
measures to ensure that this mandate is achieved.  
Good governance is thus linked to compliance with 
the Act when the Board members and executive 
management discharge their legal duties with 
care, skill and diligence. Structures and processes 
have been established and are being developed 
with appropriate checks and balances. 
The Board has overall responsibility for the 
management of and performance of the 
organisations’ executive and senior management, 
and is accountable to its Principal, the Premier of 
KwaZulu-Natal, as prescribed by the applicable 
legislative and regulatory framework, standards 
and guidelines for such performance.
The Board provides direction and leadership to the 
organisation and is ultimately accountable for the 
overall governance, performance, strategy and 
affairs of the organisation. The Board focuses on 
material issues which impact on stakeholder value 
creation and long term sustainable management 
of the organisation. This includes corporate and 
IT governance, transformation and succession 
planning, as well as reviewing and monitoring 
the development and implementation of the 
strategic plans adopted by the Board.

Operational responsibility for the organisation’s 
business has been delegated to the CEO, who is 
accountable for the on-going management of 
the organisation.

Board Charter: A formal Board Charter and 
Charter of Expectations outline the scope of 
authority, responsibilities, powers, composition 
and functioning of the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming 
and Betting Board. The primary responsibilities 
of the Board, which are reviewed and updated 
regularly, are as follows:
• Review strategic direction and monitor 

execution of strategic plans;
• Consider fi nancial reports, budgets and business 

plans, and monitor performance;
• Approve annual and interim fi nancial reports;
• Review risk management strategies and ensure 

effective internal controls and governance and 
compliance framework;

• Advise on stakeholder communication and 
governance issues;

• Make material restructuring decisions;
• Evaluate and monitor performance of the Board, 

individual members, the CEO and executive 
management;

• Approve executive management remuneration 
and incentive schemes;

• Appoint the CEO and executive management 
and ensure appropriate orientation and 
induction of new members;

• Develop clear divisions of responsibility at Board 
level to ensure appropriately limited individual 
decision-making ability; and

• Determine and approve amendments to all 
organisational policy.

Board Composition: The KwaZulu-Natal Gaming 
and Betting Board (“The Board”) is composed 
of nine capable members led by Mrs Sibusisiwe 
Zulu (née Ngubane), to which the CEO and 
Committees report. During the year Mrs N.D. 
Shabalala was appointed as a Member. She joins 
the Board with signifi cant industry experience, 
having been a former member of the KwaZulu-
Natal Gambling Board. The Board has a unitary 
structure with non-executive independent 

(Continued)

legislative and regulatory changes by the Chief 
Legal Advisor. Presentations at Board Meetings by 
representatives from different business units are 
aimed at improving the Members understanding 
of the business and processes. Member’s 
membership of the Institute of Directors, which has 
an on-going objective of director development 
and education, is paid for by the organisation.
Board Meetings: The Board meets at least twelve 
times a year. Additional meetings may be convened 
to discuss specifi c issues which arise between 
scheduled board meetings. All board meetings 
are convened by formal notice. Supporting 
documentation in the form of comprehensive 
proposals and reports is distributed to Members 
at least fi ve days before board meetings to allow 
for adequate preparation and to facilitate more 
relevant discussion at these meetings.
Five Members constitute a quorum at board meetings.
Decisions taken at board meetings are decided by 
a majority of votes with each Member having one 
vote and the Chairperson having an additional 
casting vote in the event of an equality of votes. 
Executive management consults regularly with 
the Members on relevant issues between board 
meetings as may be required.
Members have access to all the organisations 
information and are entitled to obtain independent 
professional advice at the organisations expense, 
after consulting the Chairperson.
Confl icts of Interest: The organisation’s policy on 
confl icts of interest allies to all Board Members and 
Employees. Members are required to declare their 
personal fi nancial interests, and those of related 
persons, annually, in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal 
Gaming and Betting Act, the Companies Act and 
the Code of Ethics and Conduct. 
Company Secretary and Chief Legal Advisor: 
The Company Secretary and the Chief Legal 
Advisor work to ensure that board procedures 
and relevant legislation and regulation are 
observed. They provide guidance to the 
Members on governance, compliance and 
fi duciary responsibilities. The Company Secretary 
is responsible for preparing meeting agendas and 
recording minutes. 

members and a CEO who is an ex offi cio member 
without the right to vote at meetings. 
In view of the qualifi cations, experience and 
personal characteristics of the independent non-
executive Board Members, together with the fact 
that they have no material contractual relationships 
with the organisation or any of its licensees, there 
is assurance that their judgement is exercised 
independently and in an unfettered manner. The 
independence of the Members is also assessed 
annually by the Board’s principal, the Premier of 
KwaZulu-Natal, as recommended in King III.
In addition, the roles of the Chairperson and the Chief 
Executive Offi cer are separate and clearly defi ned. 
This division of responsibilities ensures a balance of 
authority and power, with no individual Member 
having unrestricted decision-making authority.
Board Appointments: Members are appointed by 
the Premier in a formal and transparent manner. 
Members are selected based on their skills, 
business experience and qualifi cations, while 
gender and racial diversity are also considered in 
appointing new Members.
The persons appointed to the Board hold offi ce 
for a fi xed term of three years and are eligible for 
re-appointment at the expiration of such term: 
Provided that no person may be reappointed 
after serving two terms. There is no prescribed 
retirement age for Board Members.
Director Induction and Development: 
Newly appointed Board Members participate 
in an induction programme. The programme is 
tailored to the needs of each Member, based 
on qualifi cations, knowledge and experience. 
Besides providing orientation regarding the 
organisations operations, the programme also 
makes Members aware of relevant policies such 
as the avoidance of confl icts of interest and the 
code of ethics and conduct.
Board Members are introduced to key management 
and also receive documentation such as the Board 
and Committee Charters, the organogram and the 
latest annual fi nancial statements.
As part of the on-going development, Members 
attend appropriate external seminars and 
workshops and periodic technical updates on 
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE
The new Board absorbed the work of two 
former public entities (Boards) in addition to 
actioning the transformation initiative it has been 
mandated with by the Act, which accounts for an 
extraordinary number of meetings.
The Board has met and engaged with all its 
licensees, with new licensees and the public 
in general in compliance with the Promotion of 
the Administrative Justice Act. Again this has 
increased the number of meetings the Board has 
been required to attend.
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S.N. Zulu 17 20 8 7 3 7 85 147
P.D. Arnold-Mfusi 9 19 0 1 0 0 25 54
P.Z. Dlamini 16 35 2 1 4 0 78 135
I.E. Konyn 15 32 2 2 2 0 63 116
H. Oosthuizen 13 2 13 1 14 4 27 74
T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu 15 6 10 13 2 5 36 87
T.I. Nzimakwe 15 7 13 3 11 0 55 104
A.H. Trikamjee 9 0 0 5 5 0 8 27
N.D. Shabalala * 4 0 2 3 4 0 14 27

* appointed 14 November 2012 

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has delegated specifi c responsibilities 
to committees to assist the board in meeting 
oversight responsibilities. These committees are 
chaired by Board Members (except where the 
committee performs an executive function) and 
the Members confi rm that the committees have 
functioned in accordance with their written terms 
of reference/ charters during the fi nancial period.
Five committees assist the Board in reviewing and 
advising management within specifi c portfolios. 
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS
Information on the Audit Committee is included in the Audit 
Committee Report, which has been incorporated in the annual 
fi nancial statements as required by the PFMA. The objectives and 
functions of the Audit Committee are:
Aims to ensure the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
and effective fi nancial reporting and internal control systems.
Aims to ensure compliance of published fi nancial reports with 
relevant legislation, reporting standards and good governance.
Aims to ensure organisational assets are safeguarded.
Has oversight of fraud and IT risks in far as these impacts on the 
fi nancial reporting process.
Confi rms the nomination and appointment of the external auditor.
Reviewed the terms of engagement and fees paid to the 
external auditor.
Monitors the functioning and approves the coverage plan of 
internal audit.
Defi nes and considers the non-audit services that may be 
rendered by the internal auditor.
Considers the findings arising from the annual financial 
statement audit.
Reviews risk management programmes and initiatives.
Review the expertise, resources and expertise of the fi nance function 
and the expertise and experience of the Chief Financial Offi cer.
Recommends to the board the approval of the Integrated 
Annual Report.

COMPOSITION
Chairman
• Sadhasivan Perumal 

Other Committee Members 
• Mrs Busi Mdadla 
(Independent Member) 
• Mrs Sizeka Ngidi 
(Independent Member) 
• Mr Vereesh Ramphal 
(Independent Member) 

Two Board Members 
• Mrs Thembelihle Mapipa-Ndlovu 
• Mr Heinrich Oosthuizen 

Other  
• The Chief Executive Offi cer 
• Chief Financial Offi cer,  
• Company Secretary,  
• Internal Auditor, and 
• External Auditor attend by invitation

Resignations:  
During the period Mr Nala Mhlongo 
and Mr Sipho Nzuza resigned from 
the committee.

OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS 
To fulfi l the Board’s responsibility in respect of strategic human 
resources matters, particularly focusing on remuneration, 
employment equity, succession planning, training, 
development and retention of staff.
To perform ad hoc tasks allocated to it by the Board

COMPOSITION
Chairman:
• Dr T.I. Nzimakwe (Board Member)

Other Committee Members:
• Mrs T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu
• Mr H. Oosthuizen
The Chief Executive Offi cer and HR 
Manager attend by invitation and recuse 
themselves when matters relating to their 
own remuneration are discussed or when 
required to do so.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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FINANCE COMMITTEE

LICENCING, REGISTRATION, MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS

This Committee oversees the fi nancial and information technology 
management of the organisation in line with the Committee 
Charter. The IT component was included in the mandate of the 
Committee during the period as it appeared that a governance 
process for the effective monitoring and management of IT was 
lacking. The Board felt it would be appropriate to house IT within 
the Finance Committee which reports to the Audit Committee 
and which Committee already has oversight of IT as its mandate. 
The objectives and functions of the Committee are:

To oversee capital expenditure plans and strategies for specifi c 
capital projects.

To oversee strategic and fi nancial investment plans.

To oversee cash management plans and strategies and activities 
relating to cash accounts.

To recommend the annual budget to Board.

To ensure that the entity has an effective and independent 
Audit Committee.

Governance of IT

OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS
The Committee has been constituted to recommend to the 
Board that new entrants into the industry be licensed or registered 
and to monitor the industries activities having regard to relevant 
legislative prescripts.  The main functions and objectives of the 
committee are:

Recommendation of licenses for all forms of gambling.

Recommendation of registration of stakeholders, employees 
and amusement machines.

Monitoring of licensees compliance with licence conditions and 
relevant laws.

Law enforcement.

Approval of change applications.

COMPOSITION
Chairman: 
• Mr H. Oosthuizen

Other Committee Members:
• Mr A.H. Trikamjee
• Dr T.I. Nzimakwe
• Mrs N.D. Shabalala

The Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief 
Financial Offi cer attend by invitation.

COMPOSITION
Chairman: 
• Mr P.Z. Dlamini

Other Committee Members:
• Mrs P.D. Arnold-Mfusi
• Prof I.E. Konyn

The Chief Executive Offi cer, Chief 
Legal Advisor and Operational Division 
Managers attend by invitation

(Continued)

SOCIAL ETHICS RISK AND TRANSFORMATION COMMITTEE

OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS
Monitors Board and organisation activities in relation to social 
and economic development, good corporate citizenship, the 
environment, health and public safety, stakeholder relationships, 
labour and employment and transformation.

Makes recommendations and brings matters to the attention of 
the Board in relation to such activities.

Has oversight of risk management and provides an objective 
and independent forum to debate risk related matters facing 
the organisation.

Reports to the Board and communicates signifi cant risk related 
issues to the Board and to the Audit Committee. 

Develops a risk management framework and helps develop a 
risk management culture within the Board and organisation.

Adopts an enterprise wide risk management approach based on 
King III principles

Identifi es, assesses and helps manage signifi cant risks facing 
the organisation

Develops management mechanisms which enable risk 
identifi cation, mitigation and communication, and business 
continuity.

Aims to ensure the maintenance of effective systems of internal 
control to safeguard assets and support business sustainability.

Monitors the development and implementation of an 
appropriate transformation strategy.

Aims to ensure management embraces transformation across 
the organisation.

Monitors the design, implementation and regular review 
of policies, plans and processes aimed at facilitating 
transformation.

Aims to enable effective communication between 
directors, management and external advisors in relation to 
transformation.

COMPOSITION

Chairperson: 
• Mrs T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu 

Other Committee Members:
• Mrs N.D. Shabalala
• Mr A.H. Trikamjee 
• Mrs P.D. Arnold-Mfusi * 
(*resigned because of additional family 
responsibilities)

The Company Secretary attends and 
the Chief Executive Offi cer attends by 
invitation. 
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ADDITIONAL GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES
The governance process within the KwaZulu-Natal 
Gaming and Betting Board is supported by the 
following committees:

INTERNAL ACCOUNTABILITY
Risk Management
Risk governance and management are integral 
elements of the Board’s governance framework. 
These elements aim to ensure business specifi c 
operational and strategic risks, emerging risks, as 
well as risks posed by the external environment, 
are adequately and timeously identifi ed 
and mitigated. The Board confi rms that the 
organisation’s risk management, mitigation and 
monitoring processes have been effective in 
limiting the impact of risks on the business during 
the period. 
The Board is accountable for risk governance and 
has delegated responsibility for risk management 
Chief Information and Risk Offi cer, Chief Executive 
Offi cer and Senior Management. Specifi c 
oversight of risk management is the function of 
the SERT (Risk) Committee of the Board.
This committee ensures management has 
identifi ed, assessed, mitigated and managed 
the signifi cant risks facing the business and 
has developed a suitable risk management 
methodology and culture within the organisation. 
The Chairperson of the SERT Committee reports 
on the committee’s activities to the Board, as 
well as the Audit Committee. An enterprise-wide 
risk management approach, based on the King 
III principles, aims to ensure that all areas of the 
business are aligned with the organisation’s risk 
management philosophy and strategy. The role 
of the SERT Committee and its composition is 
detailed above.
An external consultant from Treasury is retained 
to assist with the organisation’s risk governance 
and management processes and to periodically 
benchmark the risk maturity profi le of the 
organisation relative to its peers in South Africa 

and against the King III risk governance principles.
The Chief Information and Risk Offi cer co-ordinates 
the risk management process whereby risks, 
controls and mitigation plans are determined by 
operating business units at least annually. These 
risks are documented in a risk register and are rated 
in terms of likelihood of occurrence and impact.
Senior management is required to satisfy the 
SERT Committee that suitable policies have 
been adopted and appropriate processes have 
been implemented to manage the identified 
risks adequately.
The overall risk profi le of the organisation has not 
changed materially in the period under review. 

Internal Audit
The internal audit function, which is outsourced, 
provides assurance to the board, via the Audit 
Committee, on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Board’s internal control and risk management 
practices, and the integrity of fi nancial reporting 
systems. Internal audit also assists management 
by making recommendations for improvements 
to the control and risk management environment. 
The principle of independence of the Internal 
Audit department is upheld and the Internal 
Audit Manager reports on operational matters to 
the Chief Executive Offi cer and on administrative 
matters to the Chief Financial Offi cer.
The scope of the Internal Audit department 
work includes:
• reviewing, appraising and reporting on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal control;

• reviewing the processes and systems which 
are designed to ensure integrity in reporting of 
fi nancial and operating information; and

• reviewing the adequacy of compliance with 
applicable policies, plans, procedures, laws 
and regulations.

Specific focus is placed on the system of 
internal control that ensures that assets and 
information are protected against loss, theft or 
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The Audit Committee, based on assurance 
provided by internal audit, reports that during the 
period under review:
• internal control procedures were represented 

by management as having been substantially 
effective and appropriate;

• no material breach of internal controls and 
procedures was brought to its attention;

• key risks appeared to be adequately documented 
by management and appropriately monitored 
and reported on by the SERT Committee;

• policies and authority levels were represented 
by management as having been enforced and 
adhered to; and

• no material breaches of any laws affecting the 
organisation were brought to its attention.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Acting Chief Finance Offi cer  is responsible for 
preparing annual fi nancial statements that fairly 
present the fi nancial position of the organisation 
and the results of its operations in accordance 
with the Public Finance Management Act, General 
Recognised Accounting Practices and Treasury 
Regulations. The application of GRAP is reviewed 
by the Accounting Authority and the Audit 
Committee, which meets quarterly with the external 
auditors, comprises members of the fi nancial 
management team, and makes recommendations 
to management and the Board relating to 
accounting treatment and disclosure.
The external auditor is responsible for conducting 
an independent audit of the annual fi nancial 
statements in accordance with International 
Auditing Standards, and to express an opinion as 
to whether the fi nancial statements provide fair 
presentation. The Board, based on the work of the 
Audit Committee, ensure that the annual fi nancial 
statements provide the disclosures required by 
the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Act, 
the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and King III, and 
incorporate appropriate accounting policies 
that, unless otherwise stated, have been uniformly 
and consistently applied and are supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

misuse, as well as on those controls that ensure 
key transactional information is of high integrity. 
Internal audit also provides consultation and 
other services to management such as due 
diligence services, forensic audit services, 
systems auditing services, risk management 
services and special reviews or audits. 

Internal Controls 
The Board aims to maintain a high standard of 
internal control. The sound control environment in 
the organisation is founded on: 
• Strong responsibility for controls by executives;
• Executive commitment to integrity and ethical 

values; and
• The skills and competence of executives.

The soundness of the organisation’s control 
environment is illustrated through:
• Management’s hands-on operating style;
• Clear communication through staff policies;
• Assignment of authority and responsibility to 

appropriate levels of management; and
• A control consciousness throughout the 

organisation.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the system 
of internal control, which is designed to ensure:

• Effectiveness and effi ciency of operations;
• Safeguarding, verifi cation and accountability of 

assets;
• Detection and minimisation of fraud and losses;
• Reliability of fi nancial and operational 

information and reporting; and
• Compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 

policies and procedures.
The Board delegates responsibility for the 
implementation and maintenance of the 
control framework to management. The Audit 
Committee, together with the SERT Committee 
and the internal and external auditors, assist 
the Board in monitoring the effectiveness and 
adequacy of the control environment.
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GOING CONCERN
The annual fi nancial statements for the 2013 
fi nancial period have been prepared on the 
going concern basis. Based on the organisation’s 
positive cash fl ows and cash balances and the 
revenue and cash budgets for the period to March 
2014, the directors believe that the organisation 
has adequate resources to continue in operation 
for the period ahead. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE
IT governance remains a responsibility of a number 
of forums within the organisation, including the 
Audit and Risk committees. The Audit Committee 
considers the effi cacy of IT controls, policies 
and processes in so far as these might pose a 
risk to the fi nancial reporting process, and the 
effectiveness of fi nancial controls. The SERT (Risk) 
Committee monitors management’s initiatives to 
ensure that IT risks are managed appropriately so 
as not to pose a threat to the continuity of the 
organisation’s operations. 
Aspects of IT governance are also dealt with by 
the following committees which report to the 
Board: Operational Risk Committee, Information 
Technology Steering Committee and the 
Finance Committee.
The head of the Information Technology Division 
is a Senior Manager reporting directly to the 
Chief Executive Offi cer and is responsible for 
elements of IT governance. The IT Division has 
documented its IT governance framework, as well 
as its objectives and key performance measures 
in relation to IT governance, and formally 
reports on IT governance matters to the Board, 
including progress made as measured by a Board 
approved scorecard. The IT Manager continues 
to play a signifi cant role in monitoring levels of IT 
governance and promoting and facilitating its 
on-going development within the business.

LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE
Compliance with the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and 
Betting Act, the Public Finance Management Act, 

2001 and the Treasury Regulations have enjoyed 
on-going emphasis during the period under 
review. Processes are reviewed continuously to 
ensure that the organisation adheres and complies 
therewith. In addition, the Board has identifi ed its 
key duties and responsibilities as set out in the 
new Companies Act of 2008. This Act and the 
King III report are considered paramount in the 
Boards determination to review its governance 
framework and align with best practice in the 
areas of governance, risk and compliance.

VALUES AND ETHICS
The organisation’s values are core to its business 
philosophy and guide the way the Board conducts 
its business and interacts with all stakeholders. 
A formalised policy details the Board’s code of 
ethical conduct, with the values supporting all 
aspects of this code.
Management strives to embed the values and 
code in the culture of the organisation. The 
induction programme educates new employees 
on the values and the business philosophy. 
This code, as well as the code of conduct in 
relation to conflicts of interest is available to all 
employees on the organisation’s intranet and in 
the employee handbook. 
The KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Act as 
well as a written policy prohibits the acceptance 
by employees and Board Members of gifts of 
any nature from current or prospective licensees, 
and prohibits participation in recreational events, 
or events purely of an entertainment nature, 
sponsored by these licensees, unless sanctioned 
by the Chief Executive Offi cer.
During the period no incidents of non-compliance 
by employees with the organisation’s policy on 
ethical conduct were reported and dealt with in 
terms of the organisation’s disciplinary procedures.

Whistle-blowing
The Board promotes a culture of openness and 
transparency throughout the organisation, in 
accordance with the Board’s values of trust and 
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mutual respect. King III requires companies to 
apply mechanisms to combat theft, fraud and 
other unethical practices. Employees may report 
incidents to their line manager or to the Human 
Resources department. Where an investigation of 
fi nancial irregularity is required, the Operational 
Risk Committee may become involved. 
During the fi nancial period the Board continued 
to promote awareness of the policies that deal 
with fraud and unethical behaviour. 

Money laundering
There have been no reports of suspected money 
laundering activities or unusual or suspicious 
transactions within any of the organisation’s 
operations during the fi nancial period.

GOVERNANCE PRIORITIES IN 2013
Governance will be enhanced through 
incremental improvements to structures, policies 
and processes. The Board believes that the level of 
maturity in relation to governance is in its infancy 
and accordingly the focus areas for governance 
improvement in 2013 will include the following:

• Further development of the IT governance 
framework, through the adoption of enhanced 
processes and policies, the regular measurement 
of the progress of IT governance initiatives via the 
board adopted IT governance scorecard and 
on-going work to embed good IT governance 
practices in the day-to-day business operations 
that have an IT element. 

• Ensuring the Social, Ethics, Risk and Transformation 
Committee develops meaningful momentum in 
its functioning and deliberations. This includes 
developing management’s programs in relation 
to transformation, sustainability, social and 
environmental issues of material consequence 
to the Board and its key stakeholders, including 
its disclosure and reporting on such issues. 

• Enhancing the Board’s understanding of and 
compliance with the legislative and regulatory 
requirements in its operations.
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SOCIAL ETHICS RISK 
AND TRANSFORMATION REPORT
The Company Secretary reports on the matters 
within the Committee’s mandate for the period 
ended 31 March 2013 as follows:

Appointment and Composition
In accordance with King III guidelines, a Social, 
Ethics and Transformation Committee was 
established on 29 January 2012 as a committee 
to address issues of ethics and (socio- economic) 
transformation. 
The fi rst Members to be appointed were, Mrs 
Thembalihle Mapipa-Ndlovu (Chairperson), Mr 
Ashwin Trikamjee and Mrs Pearl Arnold-Mfusi. During 
the reporting period Mrs Arnold-Mfusi resigned from 
the Committee and was excused from Committee 
duties to attend to pressing family responsibilities. 
Mrs Nozibusiso Shabalala was appointed as a 
Member during December 2012.
The Company Secretary is a permanent attendee 
as well as secretary to the Committee. The Chief 
Executive Offi cer is an invitee to the meetings.
During the year the need to have a Committee 
tasked with governance of risk became apparent 
and the Committee absorbed the burden with 
gusto. The risk governance process also preceded 
the appointment of a Chief Information & Risk 
Offi cer, Mr Mdu Zakwe who joined the Board in 
January 2013. 
This Committee was then tasked with oversight 
and addressing specifi c operational and strategic 
risks identifi ed within the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming 
& Betting Board. The Committee is chaired by 
Mrs Mapipa-Ndlovu, a Board member with an 
extensive governance background. 
On 21 April 2012 a written charter for the 
Committee was approved.

Responsibilities
The objectives and responsibilities of the Committee 
are recorded in its written charter and are aligned 
with the Committee’s statutory functions as set out 
in the Companies Regulations 2011. 
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The following issues / questions have been 
identifi ed as specifi c issues requiring attention:
• The need to address previous imbalances within 

the Horseracing and Betting Industry and ensuring 
that the previously marginalized individuals 
receive opportunities within this industry;

• Implementation of B-BBEE in line with 
recommendations made and targets set from a 
national level;

• Timelines for the implementation of 
transformation within the sector;

• Addressing issues of funding in respect of the 
BEE transactions.

Stakeholder Engagements
The Board implements its mandate through 
the interaction with licensees and other key 
stakeholders. One of the Board’s strategic 
objectives is implementation of a communication 
strategy. During the fi nancial year strategic 
engagements and strategic partnerships were 
established. The KZNGBB further participates in 
business forums on key industry issues.

Labour and Employment
The Committees obligation in respect of labour 
and employment include monitoring the Board’s 
standing relative to the International Labour 
Organisation (ILO) Protocol on decent work and 
working conditions and the Board’s employment 
relationships and contribution to the educational 
development of its employees.

Employment
Staff are stakeholders and the KZNGBB should 
ensure there are engagements with staff in an 
effort to:
• Try and establish a safe, positive and inspiring 

work environment;

• To understand the needs and concerns of our 
staff members;

• To provide staff with strategic direction;

The committee plays a role in:
• Monitoring social, economic, governance, 

employment and environmental activities 
of the organisation;

• Having oversight of the Boards transformation 
strategies, plans and processes; 

• Having input into issues of sustainability, social 
responsibility and economic development 
matters; 

• Oversight of Risk Management;

• Oversight of aspects of Corporate Governance, 
ensuring KZNGBB is a good corporate Citizen.

Functioning
The Committee met 8 times during the period under 
review. These meetings were called by written 
notice containing detailed agenda items and 
accompanied by supporting documents including 
the minutes of any prior meetings and the reports 
of permanent attendees at Committee meetings.

• The formal terms of reference were established 
and approved for this Committee of the Board in 
its Charter which was amended to incorporate 
the governance of risk in March 2013.

• The SERT Committee may take independent, 
outside professional advice within the ambit of its 
terms of reference, at the expense of the KZNGBB, 
subject to a proper process being followed. 

• The committee is appropriately constituted with 
due regard to the skills required by this committee. 

The Committee will draw matters within its mandate 
to the attention of the Board as occasion requires.

Transformation
The KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Board 
(“the Board”) has, in its capacity as both 
an organ of state as well as a public entity, 
committed itself to promote Broad-Based Black 
Economic Empowerment (“B-BBEE”) and Socio 
Economic Development within the province of 
KwaZulu-Natal (“KZN”).
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During 2012/2013 the following was achieved:
• Development of Ethics policies (Code of ethics, 

gift policies);
• Staff Members were very generous with their 

time and fi nancial contributions towards various 
organisations on Mandela Day and at Christmas 
2012. This is evidence of a culture of giving which 
is to be encouraged.

Areas requiring improvement:
• Ethics management processes need to be 

enhanced;
• An ethics risk profi le to be developed; 
• The use of paper (environmental) to be reduced.

CONCLUSION
The committee is of the view that the Board 
takes its environmental, social and governance 
responsibilities seriously. Appropriate policies, 
plans and programmes are in place to 
monitor contributions to social and economic 
development, good corporate citizenship, 
environmental responsibility, fair labour practices 
and good stakeholder relations.
No substantive non-compliance with legislation 
and regulation, or non-adherence with codes 
of best practice, relevant to the areas within 
the committee’s mandate has been brought to 
its attention. Based on its monitoring activities to 
date, the committee has no reason to believe 
that any such non-compliance or non-adherence 
has occurred. The committee recognises that 
the areas within its mandate are constantly 
evolving and that management’s responses 
too will evolve as the environmental, social and 
governance agenda enjoys increased attention 
from stakeholders. 
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Labour
The staff of the KZNGBB have become unionised 
and currently 37 employees have signed up with 
the union NEHAWU. The Board intends to ensure 
a good working relationship with the Union 
once recognized. HR manages labour relations 
for the KZNGBB.

Working Conditions
Office accommodation remains an unresolved 
problem. With the National imperative to fill 
vacant positions guiding the Board and the 
current recruitment levels, working conditions 
are uncomfortable as there is an ever reducing 
amount of working space available for new 
staff members. The Board have engaged with 
stakeholders to fast track the process and has 
established a separate fund for acquisition of 
the property.

Community Development Including Social and 
Environmental 
Currently this is achieved through licensees and 
their Corporate Social Investment programmes 
because the Board as a funded public entity 
is not mandated to manage or implement its 
own programmes. 

Ethical Leadership and Corporate Citizenship
Principle 1.2 of King III addresses the social aspect 
of corporate governance as it states: the Board 
should ensure that the company is and is seen to 
be a responsible corporate citizen.
As a responsible corporate citizen, the Board 
should protect, enhance and invest in the well-
being of the economy, society and the natural 
environment. In addition, the Board’s position and 
efforts in promoting equality, preventing unfair 
discrimination and combatting corruption, the 
development of communities in which it operates 
and its record of sponsorships, donations and 
charitable giving are further activities which the 
Committee will be monitoring.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Ms P.N. Baloyi
Chief Executive Offi cer

Mr M.B.S Mthiyane
Chief Legal Advisor

Mr B.E. Radebe
Senior Manager: 
Licensing & Registration

Mrs P.J. Stretch
Company Secretary

Mr R.S. Goodayle
Senior Manager:
Monitoring & Compliance

Mr V. Ramdas
Finance Manager

Absent:
Mrs N. Xaba – Human Resources Manager
Mr M. Zakwe – Chief Information & Risk Offi cer
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DIVISIONAL REPORTS
LICENSING AND REGISTRATION
During the 2012/2013 review period the Licensing 
and Registration Division was structured as follows:

• Casinos and Horseracing Unit and 
• LPMs and Bingo Unit

The Division’s mandates were to ensure the 
suitability of all applicants and continuous 
suitability of all licensees through conducting 
thorough probity investigations in order to ensure 
that licences are only issued to fi t and proper 
persons and by processing renewal of all licences 
and registration certifi cates. 

The following successes were achieved during 
the reporting period:

Casinos and Horseracing Unit

Corporate Probity Investigations

The Unit had carried over 13 applications 
from the previous year 2011/12

4 New applications were received 
and 8 applications were fi nalised.

A total income of R 14 550.00 was received 
as application fees

9 applications were carried over 
into the new fi nancial year 2013/14

Individual Probity Investigations (Employees)

The Unit had carried over 132 applications 
from the previous year 2011/12

856 New applications were received 
and 477 applications were fi nalised.

A total income of R 892 920.00 was received 
as application fees

511 applications were carried over 
into the new fi nancial year 2013/14

The following types of licences were renewed:

Renewal of Licences
Casino licences 5
National 
Manufacturer 1

Suppliers 2

Maintenance Provider 1

Racecourse Operators 3

Bookmakers 81

• Renewal fees collected amounted 
to R 6 079 000.00

• 132 Bookmakers Managers amounting 
to R 132 000.00 

• 6 National Employees amounting 
to R 12 000.00

LPMs and Bingo Unit -
There has been a slight decline in the number 
of applications received for LPM’S.  The industry 
seems to be slowing down in terms of growth. 
There were 84 new applications for corporate 
entities, a 38% decrease from prior year. Staff 
related problems within Route Operators resulted 
in applications not being submitted in two 
batches. One batch of applications is submitted 
per quarter, meaning that two Route Operators 
never submitted applications in two quarters of 
the year. Currently in KwaZulu-Natal Limited Pay-
out Machines are limited to 5 per location. 
With respect to Bingo, no new applications were 
received in the year under review. 

Corporate Probity Investigations
The Unit had carried over 195 applications 

from the previous year 2011/12
84 New applications were received 
and 162 applications were fi nalised.

A total income of R 213 250.00 was received 
as application fees

117applications were carried over 
into the new fi nancial year 2013/14

Individual Probity Investigations (Employees)

No applications had been carried over by the 
Unit from the previous year 2011/12

601 New applications were received 
and 569 applications were fi nalised.

A total income of R 62 180.00 was received 
as application fees

32 applications were carried over 
into the new fi nancial year 2013/14

RENEWAL OF LICENCES
The following types of licences were renewed:
• 4 Route Operators
• 497 Site Operators
• 5 Bingo Licensees
• Renewal fees collected amounted 

to R 3 300 200
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DIVISIONAL REPORTS
MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE
During the 2012/2013 review period Monitoring 
and Compliance Department was structured 
as follows:
• Gaming and Betting Control Unit
• Gaming Audit Unit
• Betting Audit Unit

The department’s mandates were to ensure the 
effi cient and effective monitoring, compliance 
and control of the gaming and betting industry. 
Audit and verifi cation of gaming and betting taxes 
due to Province. Transformation of ownership in 
the betting industry. Minimise illegal gambling and 
to investigate fraud and corruption in the industry.

The following successes were achieved during 
the reporting period:

Gaming and Betting Control Unit
The unit is responsible for ensuring the continuous 
monitoring of gaming operations in the casino, 
limited payout machine and bingo industries. 
During this period 65 casino inspections were 
conducted. These inspections ensured that all 
gaming equipment used by each licensee was 
compliant and licensed for use in the Province. 
Furthermore casino surveillance and security 
systems, gaming tables, and cash desk procedures 
were also inspected to ensure compliance.
There were 354 applications lodged by 
licensees to amend existing gaming operations. 
These applications were evaluated, approved 
and implemented.
Ensuring compliance with the South African 
National Standards 1718, in respect of casino 
gaming equipment and betting software, the 
unit evaluated and approved 657 applications 
for various casino gaming machines and 
operating systems.
The unit was tasked with certifying new gaming 
initiatives licensed by the Board. For this period 
the unit certifi ed 101 LPM sites and tested 243 
limited payout machines ensuring compliance in 
the LPM industry.

In September 2012 the unit conducted 
a certification process of the operating 
procedures and systems for the first operational 
Bingo site in Amanzimtoti.

Gaming Audit Unit
In order to ensure the accurate collection of 
gaming revenues (taxes) this unit conducted 114 
fi nancial audits for the period under review. These 
revenue audits were conducted for the casino, 
limited payout machine and bingo industries. 

Taxes verifi ed for this period were as follows:
• Casinos  – R338,623,354.00
• LPM’s – R50,769,868.00
• Bingo – R50,366.04 

(only commenced operations September 2012)

Ensuring that licensees were compliant with 
license conditions, bid commitments, corporate 
social investment, employment equity and BBBEE 
the unit conducted 111 audits on Casino, Route 
Operator and Bingo licensees.
The unit evaluated and processed 29 applications 
from licensees in respect of structural developments 
and internal control amendments.
In order to ensure that licensees were adhering to 
compliance in terms of accounting and internal 
control procedures 17 audits were conducted.
The unit was actively involved in the review and 
recommendations to amendments of Schedule 3 of 
the gaming tax Act, working closely with Provincial 
Treasury on this project.
The unit reviewed and evaluated an application 
by Blackrock Casino to increase the number of 
gaming machines, tables and hotel rooms. This 
application was subject to a public hearing which 
was fi nalized in January 2013. The application has 
subsequently been approved by the Board.
The Board endorsed a corporate social investment 
project of R6 million by Sibaya Casino in respect of 
the Lungisela Indlela Village (LIV) which is a social 
responsibility programme. The unit coordinated 

(Continued)

the registration of the school, which is part of the 
project, with the Department of Education.  This 
ensures that the children who are the benefi ciaries 
of the project receive recognized learning. The 
sustainability of the project is currently being 
monitored by the unit.

Law Enforcement Unit
This unit is housed within the gaming audit unit as 
part of the Boards’ compliance function.
There were 46 reports of information relating to 
illegal gambling in the Province. As a result thereof 
40 investigations were conducted resulting in the 
successful closure of the illegal operations and 6 
reports proved to be negative information. 
During the investigations 54 illegal gambling 
machines and 5 computer devices were seized. 
A total of R36 709.20 in cash was seized. R9 040.10 
was deposited into the Boards’ account in terms 
of the provisions of the Act after the cases had 
been fi nalized.
The unit successfully conducted a raid in 
conjunction with the South African Police 
Services, Cyber Crime Unit, and this resulted in 
the closure of an illegal internet gambling site on 
the North Coast. The case is currently pending 
trial in the magistrate’s court.
As part of the initiative to train SAPS members to 
assist in the investigation of illegal gambling and 
to create an awareness programme, the unit 
trained 80 police offi cials during this period. 

There were 33 investigations conducted and 
fi nalized which related to offences committed on 
licensed premises. These investigations related to 
theft and fraud committed by casino employees 
and patrons who participated in gaming activities 
at various licensed premises.

Betting Audit Unit
In order to ensure the accurate collection of 
betting revenues (taxes) this unit conducted 721 
revenue inspections for both the bookmaking 
and totalisator industry. 

Taxes verifi ed for this period were:

• Bookmakers  – R 82,724,627.00
• Totalisator  – R 22,055,095.00

To ensure compliance with all legislative prescripts 
382 compliance inspections were conducted.

60 FICA audits were also conducted in order to 
ensure that the betting industry is compliant with 
the Finance Intelligence Act. This was the fi rst time 
that audits of this nature were carried out in the 
betting industry. The industry is relatively new to this 
type of compliance and the results yielded were 
positive in this aspect. Through these inspections 
the Board was able to identify areas of concern 
within the betting industry and recommend 
remedial action and administrative processes to 
ensure that the industry became compliant with 
the FIC Act.
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DIVISIONAL REPORTS
Casinos
Casinos were the largest contributor of revenue 
to the Provincial Government contributing 
R 338,623,354 of the total revenue collected in the 
2012/13 fi nancial year. There has been a steady 
growth in revenue over the years, the Casinos 
reporting R338.6 million in taxes collected at the 
fi nancial year end. This represents an increase by 
R 38.3 million from the prior year. The graphs 
below depict taxes collected from Casinos and 
paid into the Provincial Revenue Fund.

(Continued)

Casino Tax Collection on Behalf of KZN 
Provincial Government

Casino Revenue Mix for 2011/2012
R 2,703 Billion

Casino Revenue Mix for 2012/2013
R 2,968 Billion

Figure 1: Casino Taxes collected 2012/13

Figure 2: Casino Revenue Mix 2011/12

Figure 3: Casino Revenue Mix for 2012/13
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Bookmakers
The major growth area in the bookmaking industry 
in terms of turnover has been in the sports betting 
turnover. This popular form of gambling has grown 
by 32.37%, while horse racing turnover has only 
grown by 8.43% year on year
The betting taxes [horse racing and sport] collected 
for the fi nancial year has grown by 9.43%.

Totalisators
The totalisator taxes collected for the fi nancial 
year has only grown by 0.77%. 
The graphs below depict taxes collected from 
the Betting Industry and paid into the Provincial 
Revenue Fund.

Bookmaker Tax Collection on Behalf 
of KZN Provincial Government

Figure 6: Bookmakers Tax Collection for 2012/13

Totalisator Tax Collection on Behalf 
of KZN Provincial Government

Figure 7: Totalisator Tax Collection for 2012/13

Limited Payout Machines
The Limited Payout machines are also showing 
growth and increase in tax collected for the 
Province. The growth is R 9,621,792 from prior 
year. The graph below depicts taxes collected 
from Route Operators and paid into the Provincial 
Revenue Fund.

Route Operator Tax Collection on Behalf 
of KZN Provincial Government

Figure 4: Route Operator Tax Collection for 2012/13

The graph below depicts taxes collected from 
the Bingo Operator and paid into the Provincial 
Revenue Fund. Bingo operations only commenced 
in September 2012.

Bingo Tax Collection on Behalf of KZN 
Provincial Government

Figure 5: Bingo Operator Tax Collection for 2012/13

Million (R)

2009 2010 2011 2012 20130

10

20

30

40

50

60

19.7
26.3

31.8

41.4

50.8

Thousand (R)

2013

50.4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0

5

10

15

20

25
Million (R)

2012 2013

21.9 22.1

Million (R)

2012 2013

83.2

0

20

40

60

80

100
75.6



32

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3332 33

The CSI projects covered herein are for the 
fi nancial period April to March. Each licensee 
contributes to the community that falls within its 
jurisdiction of operation.

The table below provides a summary of the 
contributions by licensees to the communities 
through the CSI projects:

Category 2011/12 2012/13
Health and 
Welfare R 2,674,144.30 R 997,673.23

Education R 2,858,473.84 R 6,178,218.95
Community 
Upliftment 
Projects

R 15,600.00 R 403,955.30

Sports and 
Recreation R 2,041,843.37 R 470,866.73     

Arts and 
Culture R 0.00 R 0.00  

Other R 27,915.79 R 62,785.81
Total R7, 617,977.30 R8,113,500.02 

 

The fi gure below illustrates the contributions by 
licensees to the communities through the CSI 
projects for the 2011/12 fi nancial year.

Casinos’ CSI Contribution for 2011/2012 

Figure 8: Casino’s CSI Contribution for 2011/12

Current Gaming and Betting Statistics

Licensee No. of gaming 
machines

No. of gaming 
tables

Gaming 
Positions

Casino 3629 143

Limited 
Payout 

Machines
2199

Bingo 300 - seats

Bookmakers - 60
Totalisator - 1

Contribution to CSI and Socio Economic 
development
The mandate of the Board is provided in Section 6 
of the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Act, 08 
of 2010. In terms of the mandate, the Board is to 
ensure that all gambling authorized under the Act:
Is conducted in a manner that promotes the 
integrity of the gambling industry and does not 
cause harm to the public interest Promotes the 
province’s objectives for developing a gambling 
industry whose objectives are the promotion 
of tourism, employment, economic and social 
development in the province
In terms of the King III report, companies are 
required to act, and be seen, to be a responsible 
corporate citizen.
There are fi ve (5) Casinos and four (4) Route 
Operators in the Province of KwaZulu-Natal which 
are required, in terms of the Board resolutions, 
and the Act, to contribute towards communities 
in which they operate through the Corporate 
Social Investments Projects (CSI).
There are six (6) pillars of the CSI strategy 
in each casino. Namely:
• Community Upliftment
• Education
• Sports and Recreation
• Health and Welfare
• Music, Art and Culture
• Other, e.g. Donations

DIVISIONAL REPORTS(Continued)

Health and Welfare

Other

Community 
Upliftment Projects

Education

Sports and 
Recreation

26.8%

37.5%

0.2%

0.4%

35.1%

The fi gure below illustrates the contributions by 
licensees to the communities through the CSI 
projects for the 2012/13 fi nancial year.
 

Casinos’ CSI Contribution for 2012/2013 

Figure 9: Casino’s CSI Contribution for 2012/13

The table below refl ects the CSI contributions of 
Route operators:

Category 2011/12 2012/2013
Health and 
Welfare R   149,340.00 R41, 677.00 

Education R     14,500.00  R0.00
Community 
Upliftment 
Projects

R   103,498.05 R0.00

Sports and 
Recreation R                    - R 84,710.00

Other R   316,868.29 R0.00
Total R   584,206.34 R126,387.00

 

Route Operators’ CSI Contribution for 2011/2012

Figure 10: Route Operators CSI Contribution for 2011/12

The fi gure below illustrates the contributions by 
Route Operators to the communities through the 
CSI projects for the 2012/13 fi nancial year.
 

Route Operators’ CSI Contribution for 2012/2013

Figure 11: Route Operators CSI Contribution for 2012/13

Sports and 
Recreation

Health and Welfare

Health and Welfare

Health and Welfare

Other

OtherCommunity 
Upliftment Projects

Community 
Upliftment ProjectsEducation

Education

Sports and 
Recreation

1%

12%

76%

6%
5%

Health and Welfare

26%

2%
18%

67%

33%

54%



34

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3534 35

HUMAN RESOURCES
During the period under review, the Board focused 
on the review of HR policies and practices. This 
was a key focus area to ensure the successful 
implementation of the merger. The HR unit is 
headed by an HR Manager.
Key Focus Areas Include:
• Ensure effective Recruitment and Selection 

Process
• Develop Human Resource Strategy 

and Resource Plan
• Align HR Policies with legislation
• Develop Retention Strategies
• Review performance management system
• Ensure training and development through 

Developing Training Development Plans
• Develop Employee Assistance Programme

Performance Management System
The Board established a Performance 
Management & Development System policy to 
ensure that all employees have performance 

agreements and their performance is reviewed 
bi-annually against set targets that are aligned 
towards achieving the Board’s strategic objective. 
All staff have been trained on the Board’s policy.

Training & Development
Skills Audit that was conducted by the HR 
consultant together with the training needs 
identifi ed by managers were used to compile 
a Workplace Skills Plan. Staff training for both 
technical and compliance is in line with the WSP 
submitted to SETA.

Leadership Development
Senior Managers and Managers attended 
a 3 day in-house leadership development training 
with ExecuPrime Academy.

HR Policies & Practices
The HR unit with the assistance of consultants 
developed the HR policies and procedures and 
made sure these were in line with best practice 
and legislative requirements.

DIVISIONAL REPORTS(Continued)

Employment Equity
Below is the KZNGBB’s employment equity statistics for the period ending 31 March 2013:

Employment Equity Stats as at 31 March 2013

 Male Female Total
Occupational Level A C I W A C I W Male Female Total
Top Management (EU) 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

Senior Management (EL) 3 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 5 1 6

Middle Management (D) 3 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 5 2 7
Skilled Technical (C 15 0 2 1 15 1 6 3 18 25 43
Semi -Skilled (B) 2 0 0 0 4 0 1 1 2 6 8
Basic Skilled (A) 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1
TOTAL 23 0 4 3 23 1 7 5 30 36 66

A = African  C = Coloured  I = Indian  W = White
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PERFORMANCE REPORT
PROGRAMME 1 – ADMINISTRATION

Secretariat 

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES

KEY 
PERFORMANCE 

AREAS
TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Draft a corporate 
governance 
framework 

Approved 
governance 
framework

Approved 
governance 

framework by 
2012/12/31

Approved 
governance 

framework by 
2012/12/31

Targets Achieved 

Corporate 
Governance 

a key strategic 
implementation

Implement 
governance 
framework 

Completed 
reports on levels 
of compliance 
by 2013/03/31

A number of 
interventions have 

taken place, board 
performance, charter 

of expectations, board 
audit issues and issues 
of strategic oversight, 

internal control 
oversight, and Board 
effectiveness among 

other governance 
activities in the process 

of being developed. 
These will be fi nalized 

prior to year end.

108 verifi cation 
reviews 

conducted, 108 
planned for year.

Targets Achieved 

Corporate 
Governance 

a key strategic 
implementation

Draft governance 
policies

Approved 
governance 

policies:

Code of Conduct and 
Ethics, Board Charter, 

Board Confi dential 
Information Policy, 

Professional 
Indemnity/Key Man 
Insurance policy by  

2012/12/31

Code of Conduct 
and Ethics, Board 

Charter, Board 
Confi dential 

Information Policy, 
Professional 

Indemnity/Key 
Man Insurance 

policy by  
2012/12/31

Targets Achieved

Corporate 
Governance 

a key strategic 
implementation

Undertake 
functions of 

Board Secretariat 
function. 

(Administration) 
Activity 2*

Undertake 
functions of 

Board Secretariat 
function.  

Attending to 
Board Calendar, 
Board minutes, 

Board resolutions, 
Attendance Registers 

and other Board 
related activities

Attending to 
Board Calendar, 
Board minutes, 

Board resolutions, 
Attendance 

Registers and other 
Board related 

activities

Targets exceeded No variance

Legal 

PLANNED ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE 
AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Undertake functions in 
respect of legislative reform 

and report to Board

100% of legal 
opinions submitted 
to monthly Board

100% of legal 
opinions submitted 

to Board

100% of legal 
opinions submitted 

to Board 

Targets 
Achieved

Opinions 
submitted

Drafting contracts / legal 
documentation and present 

to Board.

• Licencing conditions   
• Service level 

agreements   
• Board appeals   
• Legal opinions 
Have all been 

presented to the 
monthly Board meetings

All contracts/ 
documentation 

as specifi ed to be 
presented to Board 
within the relevant 

timelines 

All contracts/ 
documentation 

as specifi ed have 
been presented 
to Board within 

the relevant 
timelines

Targets 
Achieved No variances

Conduct Section 87 enquiries 
to ensure and maintain 

discipline within the gaming 
and betting industry and 

present to Board

100% of Section 
87 prosecuted as 

scheduled.

100% of Section 87 
prosecuted 

7 prosecuted 3 
planned

Targets 
Achieved

Board conducts 
Section 87 

enquiries for 
instances of non- 

compliance

Provide legal and related 
advice to the Board

100% opinions 
furnished to Board 
where applicable. 

100% opinions 
furnished timeously 

100% opinions 
furnished 
timeously

Targets 
Achieved 

Legal advice 
tabled

 
Human Resources

PLANNED ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Ensure effective 
Recruitment and 

Selection Policy and 
Procedures

Approved Recruitment 
& Selection Policy and 

Procedures by By end of 
July 2012

Approved 
Recruitment & 

Selection Policy and 
Procedures by By 
end of July 2012

Approved Recruitment 
& Selection Policy and 
Procedures by By end 

of July 2012

Targets 
Achieved 

No 
variances

Align all HR Policies 
with legislation

Aligned HR Policies By 
end of July 2012

The process of HR 
Policies alignment 

complete 

Performance 
Management policies, 

leave policies, 
recruitment and 

selection, codes of 
conduct and other 
Human Resources 
Policies approved.

Targets 
Achieved 

No 
variances

Develop Retention 
Strategies

Approved retention 
strategy By end of Q 4

Approved retention 
strategy By end of 

Q 4

Remuneration policies, 
conditions of service; 

Targets 
Partially 

Achieved

This will be 
a priority 

in the new 
year

Develop market 
related salaries

Market related salaries, By 
end of July 2012

The consultant has 
fi nalised Job grading 
and Evaluation and 
is ready for approval

The consultant has 
fi nalised Job grading 
and Evaluation and is 

ready for approval

Targets 
Achieved

No 
variances

Develop Succession 
Plan Succession Plan 2014 Succession Plan 2014 There is currently no 

succession plan in place
Target not yet 

due Not yet due

Develop performance 
management system

Implemented PMDS By end 
of August 2012

Implemented PMDS 
By end of August 2012

This process has 
commenced

Targets 
Achieved

No 
variances

Implemented Appraisal 
System, By end of August 

2012

Implemented 
Appraisal System, By 
end of August 2012

This process has 
commenced

Targets 
Achieved

No 
variances

Performance Agreements 
and Personal Development 
Plans By end of August 2012

Performance 
Agreements 
and Personal 

Development Plans By 
end of August 2012

Performance 
agreements signed

Targets 
Achieved

No 
variances

Finalize Performance 
Agreements 
and Personal 

Development Plans

Implement Personal 
development plan

Personal 
development plan 

part of performance 
reviews

Personal development 
plan part of 

performance reviews

Targets 
Achieved

No 
variances

Develop training 
Development plans

Implement training and 
development Programme 

by December 2012

Currently no training 
and development 

Programme in place.

Currently no training 
and development 

Programme in place.

Targets 
Partially 

Achieved

To be focussed 
on in the new 

year
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PROGRAMME 1 – ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)

Finance

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES

KEY PERFORMANCE 
AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Develop an SCM 
policy for the 

Board.

Approved SCM 
policy for the 

Board.

Approved by 30 
September 2012

SCM policy 
approved by 

Board
Achieved

Implementation 
requires focus in 

new fi nancial year.

Prepare the 
procurement plan

Approved 
procurement plan 

for the entity for 
the year.

Approved by 31 
March 2013

No procurement 
plan developed Not Achieved

SCM requires 
improvement in 

new fi nancial year.

Develop and 
review fi nance 

policies and 
procedures

Develop and 
review fi nance 

policies and 
procedures

Approved by 30 
September 2012 

SCM policy 
developed and 

approved fi nancial 
delegations 

revised.  Materiality 
framework 
developed. 

In Progress

Assistance 
obtained to 

develop new and 
review current 

fi nance policies.

Establish and 
maintain 

functional bid 
communication.

Establish and 
maintain 

functional bid 
communication.

Committees 
appointed by 30 
September 2012

Bid –Committees 
were approved by 

Board
Partially Achieved

Focus to be on the 
capacitating and 
operating of these 
Bid Committees.

Conduct asset 
counts to verify 

assets

Number of asset 
counts conducted 

to verify assets

Number of assets 
counts conducted 

2 ASSET COUNTS 
during the year Achieved

Suffi cient planning 
and conducting of 

asset counts.

Develop MTEF 
process timetable

Approved MTEF 
process timetable

Approved MTEF 
process timetable 
by 30 June 2012

MTEF process 
timetable 

developed and 
approved.

Achieved
Reporting 

through Finance 
Committee. 

Submit quarterly 
reports to the 
Offi ce of the 

Premier

Submit quarterly 
reports to the 
Offi ce of the 

Premier

4 Reports to be 
furnished to the 

Offi ce of the 
Premier.

Quarterly reports 
to the Offi ce of the 
Premier submitted 
for quarter 1, 2, 3 
and 4 submitted.

Achieved Adequate 
reporting process.

Submit approved 
budget to Offi ce of 

the Premier.

Submitted 
approved budget 

to Offi ce of the 
Premier by 30 
September.

Budget was 
submitted by 30 
September 2012

Budget was 
submitted by 30 
September 2012

Achieved Adequate 
reporting process.

Collect all monies 
due to the Board

Record of 
collected monies 
due to the Board

95% of monies due 
to the Board to be 

collected

The collection of 
monies owed was 

within the 95% 
target and was 

achieved

Achieved

Collection of 
monies due 

receives focus and 
attention.

PERFORMANCE REPORT (Continued)

Information Technology

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES

KEY 
PERFORMANCE 

AREAS
TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Maintain and 
improve the 
performance 
of current IT 

infrastructure

Maintained 
and improved 
performance 
of current IT 

infrastructure by 
31/03/13

Up graded IT 
infrastructure 

and renewal of 
software licenses; 

upgraded 
networks by 

31/03/13

IT infrastructure 
was up    graded 

and software 
licenses 

renewed; 

Achieved No variance

Develop Disaster 
recovery plan

Develop Disaster 
recovery plan by 

31/03/13

The disaster 
recovery plan is 
in the process of 
being fi nalized 

by 31/03/13

The disaster 
recovery plan is 
in the process of 
being fi nalized.

Achieved DRP in place.

Improve IT 
Governance

Approved IT 
strategy and 
Governance 

Framework by 
31/03/13

Develop IT 
Governance 

Framework by 
31/03/13

IT Governance 
Framework 

developed and 
Approved

Achieved No variance.

Align IT to the 
business strategy.

Aligned IT to the 
business strategy 

by 31/03/13

Aligned IT 
Strategy to 

Business Strategy 
within fi nancial 

year by 31/03/13

Annual 
Performance 

plan and 
strategy aligned.

Achieved No variance

Implement 
IT Service 

Management

Approved 
IT Service 

Management 
policy by 
31/03/13

IT Strategy to be 
approved within 
fi nancial year by 

31/03/13

IT Strategy 
draft presented 

to FINCOM 
and principle 

supported.

In Progress

IT service 
management 
strategy to be 

approved in fi rst 
quarter of new 
fi nancial year.
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PROGRAMME 2: LICENSING AND REGISTRATION

Casino and Betting

PLANNED ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Process and investigate 
all applications received 
for licenses by corporate 
entities and Individuals 

which includes the 
following categories:
Financial acquisitions; 

certifi cates of suitability; 
relocation of premises; 

Manufacturers; Suppliers 
and Maintenance 

Providers; Racecourse 
Operators; Totalisators 

and Bookmakers; 
Totalisator Operators

Total number of applications 
received for licenses
Primary Licences: 
• Casinos – 0
• Racecourse Operator -  0
• Totalisator - 0
• Bookmaker - 0
• Secondary (Registration)
• Manufacturer - 0
• Supplier - 0
• Maintenance Provider - 0
• Totalisator Operator    0
• Acquisition of Financial 

Interest  5

100% of 
applications 

received to be 
processed within 

3 months of 
receipt

Applications processed
Primary Licences:
• Casino - 0
• Racecourse Operator - 2
• Totalisator - 2
• Bookmaker - 1
• Secondary (Registration)
• Manufacturer - 1
• Supplier - 0
• Maintenance Provider - 1
• Totalisator Operator     - 2
• Acquisition of Financial 

Interest - 8

Targets 
Partially 

Achieved

Absence of 
minimum 

Transformation 
standards. 

This has been 
addressed in 
the new year

Process and 
investigate 

applications 
for employees’ 

registration 
certifi cates.

Total number of  applications 
for employee registration 
certifi cates received 
• Bookmakers clerks 385
• Bookmaker’s Managers- 24
• Casino - 447 
• National Employees 6

100% of 
applications 

received to be 
completed within 

2 months of 
receipt 

Applications Processed
• Bookmakers Clerks - 214
• Bookmaker’s Managers- 33    
• Casino - 303
• National Employees 6

Targets 
Achieved

Resourcing 
has been a 
challenge. 

This has been 
addressed in 
the new year

Process renewal 
of licences and 

certifi cates

Total number of applications 
for renewal of licences and 
certifi cates received.
Primary Licences:
• Casino - 5
• Racecourse Operator - 4
• Totalisator  - 0
• Bookmaker - 81
• Secondary (Registration 

Certifi cates)
• Manufacturer - 0
• Supplier - 2
• Maintenance Provider 0
• Totalisator Operator  0
• Bookmaker Manager 143
• National Employees 6

100% issued valid 
licenses and 

certifi cates for 
Casino Renewals; 
Gaming Machine 
renewals; Tables 

Games Renewals; 
suppliers 
renewals; 

Maintenance 
Provider Renewal;

Manufacturer 
National Licence 

Renewal;

National 
Employment 

Licence Renewal;

Applications processed
Primary Licences:
• 5 Casinos – 3650 Slots 

and  155 Tables 
• 4 Racecourse Operators
• No Totalisator
• 81 Bookmaker licences
• Secondary (Registration 

Certifi cates)
•  No manufacturer
• 2 Suppliers
• 1 Maintenance Provider
• No Totalisator Operator
• 137 Bookmaker Managers
• 6 National Employees

 Targets 
Achieved

Unprocessed 
applications 
for renewal 
were from 
Dormant 

Registrants

Draft Transformation 
Minimum Standard 

Guidelines  

Ensure transformation is 
included in application forms

Transformation is 
addressed in all 

application forms 

Draft guidelines have been 
developed and application 
forms and rules have been 
amended and aligned to 
the revised regulations and 
transformation guidelines. 

Targets 
Achieved

Draft 
guidelines 

fi nalised. Will 
be approved 

in the new 
year.

PERFORMANCE REPORT (Continued)

Limited Payout Machines and Bingo

PLANNED ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Process and 
investigate all 
applications 

received for licenses 
by corporate by 

corporate entities in 
the LPM and Bingo 

categories.

Total number of applications 
received: 

Primary Licenses
• Type A Site -  60
• Type B Site  -  0
• Bingo  - 0
• Secondary (Registration)
• Acquisitions - 3
• Certifi cate of Suitability  - 1
• Relocation  - 0
• Amendment - 0

100% of applications 
received to be 

processed within 3 
months of receipt

Applications processed
Primary Licences
• Type A Site - 122
• Type B Site - 0
• Bingo - 1
• Secondary 

(Registration)
• Acquisitions - 3
• Certifi cate of 

Suitability - 1
• Relocation - 0
• Amendment - 4

Achieved 

• 7 Type A 
applications 
returned for 
incompleteness. 

• 69 Type A 
application 
taken over 
from the KZN 
Gambling 
Board.

• The amendment 
applications 
were taken over 
from the KZN 
Gambling Board

Process and 
investigate all 
applications 

for employees 
registration 

certifi cates for LPM 
and Bingo categories

Total number of applications 
received.
• Type A Site – 569
• Type B Site – 0
• Bingo – 50

100% completed 
within 2 months of 

receipt 

Applications processed
• Type A Site – 569
• Type B Site – 0
• Bingo – 50

Targets Achieved
Targets met 

despite challenges 
of Resources.

Process renewal 
of licences and 

certifi cates

Total number of applications 
for renewal received
Route Operators – 4
National Employees – 12
Bingo – 5
Site Operators – 497 

100% issued licences 
and certifi cates. 

Year to date: 
Applications processed
Route Operators- 4
National Employees -12
Site Operators - 497
Bingo Operators - 5

Targets Achieved No variances

Develop and 
manage policies and 
procedures within the 

Division

Approved investigation 
manual

Draft, approve 
and workshop staff 
on the approved 

investigation manual

• Manual was drafted 
and approved

• Workshops did not 
take place

Targets Partially 
Achieved

To be focussed on 
in the new year

Identify and build 
professional relations 
with key stakeholders

Engage with key 
stakeholders such as SAPS, 

SARS, BASA and LPMSA

Number of 
engagements with 

SAPS, SARS, BASA and 
LPMSA 

Meetings held with SA 
Police Criminal Record 

Centre, SA Revenue 
Services, BASA and 

LPMSA

Targets Achieved Met stakeholders
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PROGRAMME 3: MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE

Gaming Audit Unit

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES

KEY PERFORMANCE 
AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Audit and 
verifi cation of fees 
and taxes paid by 

licensees

Total number of tax 
reconciliations for 

Casinos

60 casinos planned 
per year

60 verifi cation reviews 
conducted

100% Targets 
Achieved and 

exceeded

No variance.

Total number of tax 
reconciliations for 
Route Operators

48 route operator 
verifi cations 

planned per year.

48 route operator 
verifi cations  
conducted

No variance.

Total number of tax 
reconciliations for 
Bingo Operators.

No target set Bingo Operator(new)
Bingo site Rolled 
out in September 

2012.

Conduct monthly 
monitoring  audits 

on all licensees

Total number of 
monthly audits 

planned for 
Casinos

60 casinos planned 
per year

60  verifi cation 
reviews conducted 

for Casinos

100% Targets 
Achieved and 

exceeded

No variance, 

Total number of  
monthly audits 

planned for Route 
Operators

48 route operator 
verifi cations 

planned per year.

48 route operator 
verifi cations  

conducted for route 
operators

No variance.

Total number of 
monthly audits 

planned for Bingo 
Operators.

No target set 3 Bingo 
Operator(new)

Bingo site Rolled 
out during fi nancial 

year

Conduct annual 
compliance  audits 
on all licensed LPM 

sites

Total number of 
compliance audits 

conducted per 
year.

Target 451 
compliance audits 

per annum

451 audits planned 
470 audits achieved

100% Targets 
Achieved and 

exceeded

All LPMs rolled out 
were monitored. 19 
extra sites audited.

Conduct 
compliance 
audits on all 

licensees and issue 
compliance reports 

on all audits.

Total number of 
compliance audits 

14 compliance 
audits planned

19 Compliance 
audits conducted.

100% Targets 
Achieved and 
exceeded by 5 

audits.

Positive variance 
as a result of 
appointment 
of Board FICA 

inspections

Plan and action 
raids on all 

reported cases of 
illegal gaming – 

completed reports 
to be submitted to 
LRMCC quarterly

Total number of 
raids successfully 

conducted in 
relation to number 
of cases reported

Number of raids 
successfully 

conducted in 
relation to number 
of cases reported

46 reported 
cases of illegal 

gambling reported, 
investigated and 

fi nalised

Targets Achieved No variance.

Investigate all 
reported cases 

of offences 
committed on 

licensed premises

Total number of 
reports submitted 
to committees for 
review quarterly

100% cases 
reported to be 

investigated

33 cases reported, 
investigated and 

fi nalised.
Targets Achieved No variance.

PERFORMANCE REPORT (Continued)

Gaming and Betting Control Unit

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Process all 
operational 

change requests 
received from 
Licensees and 

applicants

Total number of 
operational change 

requests received 
evaluated, compiled and 
submitted to Committee 

quarterly 

Process 100% of 
all applications 

received 

354 applications made 
by licensees, evaluated 

and presented to 
LRMCC

Targets 
Achieved No variance.

Conduct monthly 
inspections of 

gaming operations.

Total number casino 
inspections conducted 

and reports submitted to 
LRMCC

60 casinos 
inspections for the 

year

65 inspections 
conducted

100% Targets 
Achieved 

and 
exceeded

No variance.

Evaluate and 
process all 

applications 
received for 

hardware and 
software changes 

by licensees

Processed 100% of all 
applications received 

monthly

Process all 
hardware and 

software changes.

657 applications 
received, evaluated and 

processed during the 
year.

Targets 
Achieved

All letters of 
certifi cation 
evaluation 

reports 
received and 

processed

Investigate all 
gaming disputes 

lodged by patrons

Investigate 100% of all 
disputes lodged during 

the year

Investigate 100% of 
all disputes lodged

100% of all disputes 
lodged, investigated 
and fi nalized. Total 

number of disputes 26

Targets 
Achieved

26 patron 
disputes 
lodged, 

investigated 
and fi nalized 

Betting Audit Unit

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS TARGET ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT COMMENTS

Conduct 
compliance audits 

on Bookmaker 
and Totalisator 

operators*

Total number of 
compliance inspections 

reports submitted to 
LRMCC

383 compliance 
inspections planned for 

bookmaking industry

382 
compliance 
inspections 
conducted

99% Target 
Achieved 

1 inspection 
remained

Conduct FICA 
inspections on all 
betting licensees*

Total number of FICA 
audits

60 FICA inspections 
planned for the 

Bookmaking Industry

60 FICA  
inspections 
conducted

Targets 
Achieved No variance

Audit and 
verifi cation of Fees 
and Taxes paid by 

Licensees*

Total Number of revenue 
audits

720 revenue inspections 
planned for the 

Bookmaking Industry

720 revenue 
inspections 
conducted

Targets 
Achieved No variance

Investigate all 
gaming disputes 

lodged by patrons

Investigate 100% of all 
disputes and complaints 

lodged

Investigate 100% of all 
disputes lodged

28 disputes 
and 2 

complaints 
lodged and 
investigated

Targets 
Achieved

Betting Disputes 
heard by the 

Board
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AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE KWA-
ZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON THE 
KWAZULU-NATAL GAMING AND BETTING BOARD

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the fi nancial statements of the 

KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting Board set out 
on pages 48 to 66, which comprise statement 
of fi nancial position as at 31 March 2013, the 
statement of fi nancial performance, statement 
of changes in net assets and the cash fl ow 
statement for the year then ended, and the notes, 
comprising a summary of signifi cant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

The accounting authority’s responsibility for the 
fi nancial statements
2. The board of directors which constitutes the 

accounting authority is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these 
fi nancial statements in accordance with 
the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards 
of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 
(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal 
control as the accounting authority determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of 
fi nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these fi nancial statements based on my audit.  
I conducted my audit in accordance with the 
Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 
25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in 
terms thereof and International Standards on 
Auditing.  Those standards require that I comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the fi nancial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the fi nancial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the 
fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the fi nancial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the fi nancial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained 
is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the fi nancial statements present 

fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position 
of the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting 
Board as at 31 March 2013, and its fi nancial 
performance and cash fl ows for the year then 
ended in accordance with SA Standards of 
GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion 

is not modifi ed in respect of this matter.

Material underspending of the capital budget
8. As per the budget, the entity has materially 

underspent their budget for capital expenditure 
by an amount of R998 494 (63%), as a result of 
not replacing computer equipment and furniture 
and fi xtures as budgeted for. 

programme performance information.
The reliability of the information in respect of 
the selected programmes and objectives is 
assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, 
accurate and complete).

14. There were no material fi ndings on the annual 
performance report concerning the usefulness 
and reliability of the information.

Compliance with laws and regulations
15. I did not identify any instances of material 

non-compliance with specifi c matters in key 
applicable laws and regulations as set out in 
the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control
16. I did not identify any defi ciencies in internal 

control which I considered suffi ciently 
signifi cant for inclusion in this report. 

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2013

Additional matter
9. I draw attention to the matter below. My 

opinion is not modifi ed in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
10. The supplementary information set out on 

page 67 does not form part of the fi nancial 
statements and is presented as additional 
information. I have not audited these 
schedules and, accordingly, I do not express 
an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
11. In accordance with the PAA and the 

general notice issued in terms thereof, I 
report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined 
objectives, compliance with laws and 
regulations and internal control, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined objectives 
12. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 

about the usefulness and reliability of the 
information in the annual performance 
report as set out on pages 36 to 43 of the 
annual report. 

13. The reported performance against 
predetermined objectives was evaluated 
against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. The usefulness of information in 
the annual performance report relates to 
whether it is presented in accordance with 
the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported 
performance is consistent with the planned 
programmes and objectives. The usefulness 
of information further relates to whether 
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable 
and time bound) and relevant as required by 
the National Treasury Framework for managing 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The members are required by the Public Finance 
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain 
adequate accounting records and are responsible 
for the content and integrity of the fi nancial 
statements and related fi nancial information 
included in this report. It is the responsibility of the 
members to ensure that the fi nancial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as 
at the end of the fi nancial year and the results of 
its operations and cash fl ows for the period then 
ended. The external auditors are engaged to 
express an independent opinion on the fi nancial 
statements and was given unrestricted access to 
all fi nancial records and related data.
The fi nancial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including 
any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued 
by the Accounting Standards Board.
The fi nancial statements are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently 
applied and supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates.
The members acknowledge that they are 
ultimately responsible for the system of internal 
fi nancial control established by the entity and 
place considerable importance on maintaining 
a strong control environment. To enable the 
members to meet these responsibilities, the 
accounting authority sets standards for internal 
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or defi cit 
in a cost effective manner. The standards include 
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a 
clearly defi ned framework, effective accounting 
procedures and adequate segregation of duties 
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the entity 
and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s 
business is conducted in a manner that in all 
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. 
The focus of risk management in the entity is on 
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring 
all known forms of risk across the entity. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, 
the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed 
within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The members are of the opinion, based on 
the information and explanations given by 
management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the fi nancial 
records may be relied on for the preparation of 
the fi nancial statements. However, any system 
of internal fi nancial control can provide only 
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatement or defi cit.
The members have reviewed the entity’s cash 
fl ow forecast for the year to 31 March 2014 and, 
in the light of this review and the current fi nancial 
position, they are satisfi ed that the entity has or 
has access to adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The annual fi nancial statements are prepared 
on the basis that the entity is a going concern 
and that the Provincial Government has neither 
the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail 
materially the scale of the entity.
Although the accounting authority is primarily 
responsible for the fi nancial affairs of the entity, they 
are supported by the entity’s external auditors.
The external auditors are responsible for 
independently reviewing and reporting on 
the entity’s fi nancial statements. The fi nancial 
statements have been examined by the entity’s 
external auditors and their report is presented on 
pages 46 to 47.
The fi nancial statements set out on pages 49 to 67, 
which have been prepared on the going concern 
basis, were approved by the accounting authority 
on 31 July 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

S N ZULU      
CHAIRPERSON

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The members are not aware of any matter 
or circumstance arising since the end of the 
financial year.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The fi nancial statements prepared in accordance 
with the prescribed Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued 
by the Accounting Standards Board as the 
prescribed framework by National Treasury.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
The members of the entity during the year and to 
the date of this report are refl ected below: 

Name Nationality Changes
Mrs S.N. Zulu South African
Mrs P.D. Arnold-Mfusi South African
Mr A.H. Trikamjee South African
Prof. I.E. Konyn South African
Mr H. Oosthuizen South African
Mrs T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu South African
Mr PZ Dlamini South African
Dr T I Nzimakwe South African

Mrs ND Shabalala South African
Appointed 

14 November 
2012

SECRETARY
The secretary of the entity is Mrs PJ Stretch of:

Business address 330 Langalibalele Street
   Pietermaritzburg
   3201
Postal address Private Bag X9102
   Pietermaritzburg
   3200

AUDITORS
The Auditor-General South Africa will continue in 
offi ce for the next fi nancial period.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S REPORT
The members submit their report for the year 
ended 31 March 2013.

INCORPORATION
The entity was incorporated on 01 April 2011 in 
terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Gaming and Betting 
Act, Act 8 of 2010.

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Main business and operations

The entity is engaged in the regulation of the 
gambling industry in KwaZulu-Natal and operates 
principally in South Africa.

During the prior year the operations of the 
previous KwaZulu-Natal Gambling Board and the 
KwaZulu-Natal Bookmakers Control Committee 
were merged into one entity, the KwaZulu-Natal 
Gaming and Betting Board.

The operating results and state of affairs of the 
entity are fully set out in the attached fi nancial 
statements and do not in our opinion require any 
further comment.

Net surplus of the entity was R 6 872 429 
(2012: defi cit R 4 176 104.)

In the prior year, the entity did not receive a 
grant for the operations of the KwaZulu-Natal 
Bookmakers Control Committee which resulted in 
the defi cit. 

GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 
2013, the entity had an accumulated surplus of 
R 27 777 988 and that the entity’s assets exceed its 
total liabilities by R 27 777 988.

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on 
the basis of accounting policies applicable to a 
going concern. This basis presumes that funds will 
be available to fi nance future operations and that 
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will 
occur in the ordinary course of business.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
                 Note  2013   2012
             R      R

Assets      
Current Assets      
Trade and other receivables    4  850 951  685 020 
VAT receivable     17    38 817    38 817 
Cash and cash equivalents    14        41 778 074        34 071 669 
               42 667 842        34 795 506 
Non Current Assets       
Moveable assets     2          1 801 585            1 840 463 
Intangible assets     3  463 706  555 626 
                  2 265 291          2 396 089 
     
Non Current Assets                2 265 291          2 396 089 
Current Assets               42 667 842        34 795 506 
Total Assets               44 933 133        37 191 595 

     
Liabilities      
Current Liabilities      
Payables from exchange transactions  5         16 137 088        15 178 587 
Provisions      6           1 018 057          1 107 449 
                17 155 145        16 286 036 
     
Current Liabilities              17 155 145        16 286 036 
Total Liabilities              17 155 145        16 286 036 
     
Assets                 44 933 133            37 191 595 
Liabilities             (17 155 145)       (16 286 036)
Net Assets                27 777 988         20 905 559 
     
Net Assets     
Accumulated surplus     18         27 777 988         20 905 559 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
         Accumulated surplus       Total net assets
               R           R

Balance at 01 April 2011            -           -
Changes in net assets     
Net gain on transfer of assets and liabilities of KZN 
Gambling Board and KZN Bookmakers Control Committee 33 968 486  33 968 486
Adjustments made to the net gain realised       (168 529)     (168 529) 
Net gain realised on valuation of assets      1 063 840    1 063 840 

Net income recognised directly in net assets   34 863 797  34 863 797 
Defi cit for the year        (4 176 104)  (4 176 104) 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year  30 687 693  30 687 693 
Amounts surrendered to Provincial Revenue Fund   (9 782 134)  (9 782 134) 

Total changes        20 905 559  20 905 559 

Balance at 01 April 2012      20 905 559  20 905 559
Changes in net assets    
Surplus for the year         6 872 429    6 872 429

Total changes          6 872 429    6 872 429

Balance at 31 March 2013      27 777 988  27 777 988

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
      Note       2013       2012
                R          R

Revenue        48 386 299  29 113 492 
Operating expenses                (42 666 403)           (35 143 347) 
Major events         11      (219 316)   - 

Operating surplus / (defi cit)       16     5 500 580  (6 029 855) 
Investment revenue         7      1 644 611     1 853 751 
Interest and penalties         (272 762)   - 
Profi t/ (Loss) for the period from continuing operations      6 872 429  (4 176 104) 

Surplus / (defi cit) for the year            6 872 429  (4 176 104) 



52

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

5352 53

               Note      2013      2012
                 R          R
Cash fl ows from operating activities     
Receipts      
Fees earned        11 664 024  18 019 274 
Grants         35 775 000  17 337 000 
Interest income         1 644 611    1 853 751 
Other income                 1 567          2 917 
         49 085 202  37 212 942  
     
Payments      
Employee costs                (26 862 989)           (21 579 948)
Suppliers                 (13 558 426)           (14 542 545)
Interest and penalties                    (272 762)                 -
                  (40 694 177)           (36 122 493)
     
Total receipts        49 085 202  37 212 942 
Total payments                (40 694 177)             (36 122 493)
Net cash fl ows from operating activities   13   8 391 025    1 090 449 
    
Cash fl ows from investing activities     
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  2    (585 507)     (626 291) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2  -       480 900 
Purchase of other intangible assets    3      (99 113)     (353 446) 
Cash acquired from business combinations   21  -   43 262 191 
Net cash fl ows from investing activities       (684 620)   42 763 354 
     
Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities     
Surrender of amounts to Provincial Revenue Fund    -  (9 782 134) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    7 706 405  34 071 669 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  34 071 669   - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  14 41 778 074  34 071 669 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
net of estimates for irrecoverable amounts.  These 
types of fi nancial instruments arise out of the 
ordinary course of the Board’s activities through 
charging customers for legislated fees as well as 
recovery of costs based on the work performed.
Trade payables are stated at amortised cost 
that is considered a reasonable approximation 
of the fair value thereof.
Credit Risk
Trade receivables are susceptible to credit 
risk, however this is adequately minimised as 
the charges are legislated and the course of 
recovery is adequately provided for in the 
legislation. There has been no substantial 
change in this risk from the previous period.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial 
recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Appropriate allowances 
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
recognised in surplus or defi cit when there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. 
Signifi cant fi nancial diffi culties of the debtor, 
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy 
or fi nancial reorganisation, and default or 
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days 
overdue) are considered indicators that the 
trade receivable is impaired. The allowance 
recognised is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash 
fl ows discounted at the effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account, 
and the amount of the defi cit is recognised 
in surplus or defi cit within operating expenses. 
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it 
is written off against the allowance account 
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are credited 
against operating expenses in surplus or defi cit.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The fi nancial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, 
guidelines and directives issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board.
These fi nancial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting 
and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention unless specifi ed otherwise. They 
are presented in South African Rand.
A summary of the signifi cant accounting 
policies, which have been consistently 
applied, are disclosed below.

1.1 Government grants
Government grants received relating to 
expenditure are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match the related 
costs that they are intended to compensate.

1.2 Revenue
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that 
economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Board and 
the amount can be measured reliably.
Revenue from license fees is recognised on 
an accrual basis in accordance with the term 
of the license agreement. Interest income is 
accrued on a time proportion basis, taking 
into account the principal amount and the 
effective interest rate.
Interest, royalties and dividends
Interest is recognised, in surplus or defi cit, using 
the effective interest rate method.

1.3 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised 
when the Board becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the fi nancial instrument.
Trade receivables are stated at amortised cost, 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair 
value, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest 
rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand and demand deposits, and other short 
term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and 
are subject to an insignifi cant risk of changes 
in value. These are initially and subsequently 
recorded at fair value.
Liquidity Risk
The Board has suffi cient funds and adequate 
funding sources to service its fi nancial liabilities.

1.4 Moveable assets
Movable assets are initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of movable assets is the 
purchase price and other costs attributable to 
bring the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management. 
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value 
as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of movable assets is acquired 
in exchange for a non-monetary asset 
or monetary assets, or a combination of 
monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset 
acquired is initially measured at fair value (the 
cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying 
amount of the asset(s) given up.
When signifi cant components of an item of 
movable assets have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of movable assets. 
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as 
a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a 

revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised 
in surplus or defi cit to the extent that it reverses 
a revaluation decrease of the same asset 
previously recognised in surplus or defi cit.
Items of moveable assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation, and applicable 
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to 
working condition for their intended use. The 
depreciable amount is the cost less the residual 
value of the item of moveable asset. The 
assets useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
Depreciation is recorded as a charge so as 
to write off the depreciable amounts of the 
assets over their expected useful lives, using 
the straight line method on the following basis:

Item Average useful life
Furniture and fi xtures 6 Years
Motor vehicles 4 Years
Offi ce equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years

 

1.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
An intangible asset acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair 
value as at the date of acquisition.
Expenditure on research (or on the research 
phase of an internal project) is recognised as 
an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset is regarded as having 
an indefi nite useful life when, based on all 
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit 
to the period over which the asset is expected 
to generate net cash infl ows or service 
potential. Amortisation is not provided for 
these intangible assets, but they are tested for 
impairment annually and whenever there is 
an indication that the asset may be impaired. 
For all other intangible assets amortisation 

(Continued)

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to 
provide credit under pre specified terms 
and conditions.
The entity recognises a provision for fi nancial 
guarantees and loan commitments when 
it is probable that an outfl ow of resources 
embodying economic benefi ts and service 
potential will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made.
Determining whether an outfl ow of resources 
is probable in relation to fi nancial guarantees 
requires judgement. Indications that an 
outfl ow of resources may be probable are:
• fi nancial diffi culty of the debtor;
• defaults or delinquencies in interest and 

capital repayments by the debtor;
• breaches of the terms of the debt 

instrument that result in it being payable 
earlier than the agreed term and the ability 
of the debtor to settle its obligation on the 
amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic 
circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, 
infl ation and unemployment) that impact on 
the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for 
issuing a fi nancial guarantee and/or where 
a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is 
considered in determining the best estimate 
of the amount required to settle the obligation 
at reporting date. Where a fee is charged 
and the entity considers that an outfl ow of 
economic resources is probable, an entity 
recognises the obligation at the higher of:
• the amount determined using in the 

Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

• the amount of the fee initially recognised 
less, where appropriate, cumulative 
amortisation recognised in accordance 
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from 
Exchange Transactions.

is provided on a straight line basis over their 
useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for intangible assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset 
with a fi nite useful life after it was classifi ed as 
indefi nite is an indicator that the asset may 
be impaired. As a result the asset is tested 
for impairment and the remaining carrying 
amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, 
publishing titles, customer lists and items 
similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the 
intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to 
their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Software 3 years

1.6 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Board 
has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events, it is probable 
that an outfl ow of resources embodying 
economic benefi ts will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of 
the amount of the obligation can be made.  
Employee entitlements to annual leave and 
annual bonuses are recognised when they 
accrue to employees. A provision is made for 
the estimated liability for annual leave and 
annual bonuses as a result of services rendered 
by employees up to the balance sheet date.
A fi nancial guarantee contract is a contract 
that requires the issuer to make specifi ed 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because a specifi ed debtor fails to make 
payment when due in accordance with the 
original or modifi ed terms of a debt instrument.
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1.7 Operating leases
A lease is classifi ed as a fi nance lease if it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership. A lease is classifi ed as an operating 
lease if it does not transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings 
elements, the entity assesses the classifi cation 
of each element separately.

1.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried 
at fair value. For the purpose of the cash 
fl ow statements cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash on hand and deposits held at 
call with banks.

1.9 Employee benefi ts
Post-retirement benefi ts
The Board operates a defi ned contribution 
provident fund, the assets of which are held in a 
separate trustee administered fund, to provide 
for these costs. All employees of the Board are 
entitled to membership of the plan, which is 
governed by the Pension Funds Act of 1956.
Contributions are based on a percentage of the 
payroll and charged to the statement of fi nancial 
performance in the year to which they relate.
Other post retirement obligations
The Board has no obligation to fund post-
retirement medical benefi ts.

1.10 Comparative fi gures
Where necessary, comparative fi gures have 
been reclassifi ed to conform to changes in 
presentation in the current year.

1.11 Impairment of cash generating assets
Cash generating assets are those assets held 
by the entity with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return. When an 
asset is deployed in a manner consistent with 
that adopted by a profit orientated entity, it 
generates a commercial return.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic 
benefi ts or service potential of an asset, over and 
above the systematic recognition of the loss of 
the asset’s future economic benefi ts or service 
potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an 
asset is recognised in the statement of fi nancial 
position after deducting any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses thereon.
A cash generating unit is the smallest identifi able 
group of assets held with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return that generates 
cash infl ows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash infl ows from other 
assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly 
attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding 
fi nance costs and income tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic 
allocation of the depreciable amount of an 
asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount 
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash 
generating unit is the higher its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:
• the period of time over which an asset is 

expected to be used by the entity; or
• the number of production or similar units 

expected to be obtained from the asset 
by the entity.

1.12 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
• overspending of a vote or a main division 

within a vote; and
• expenditure not in accordance with the 

purpose of a vote or, in the case of a 
main division, not in accordance with the 
purpose of the main division.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

which was condoned before year end and/or 
before fi nalisation of the fi nancial statements 
must also be recorded appropriately in the 
irregular expenditure register. In such an 
instance, no further action is also required with 
the exception of updating the note to the 
fi nancial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and 
identifi ed during the current fi nancial year 
and for which condonement is being awaited 
at year end must be recorded in the irregular 
expenditure register. No further action is 
required with the exception of updating the 
note to the fi nancial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the 
previous fi nancial year and is only condoned 
in the following fi nancial year, the register and 
the disclosure note to the fi nancial statements 
must be updated with the amount condoned.
• Irregular expenditure that was incurred 

and identifi ed during the current fi nancial 
year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority 
must be recorded appropriately in the 
irregular expenditure register. If liability for 
the irregular expenditure can be attributed 
to a person, a debt account must be 
created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken 
to recover the amount from the person 
concerned. If recovery is not possible, 
the accounting offi cer or accounting 
authority may write off the amount as 
debt impairment and disclose such in the 
relevant note to the fi nancial statements. 
The irregular expenditure register must also 
be updated accordingly. If the irregular 
expenditure has not been condoned and 
no person is liable in law, the expenditure 
related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be 
disclosed as such in the note to the fi nancial 
statements and updated accordingly in the 
irregular expenditure register. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised 
expenditure is recognised as an expense in 
the statement of fi nancial performance in 
the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classifi ed in accordance 
with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted 
for as revenue in the statement of fi nancial 
performance.

1.13 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure 
which was made in vain and would have 
been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is recognised as an expense in 
the statement of fi nancial performance in 
the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classifi ed in accordance 
with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted 
for as revenue in the statement of fi nancial 
performance.

1.14 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defi ned in section 1 of 
the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised 
expenditure, incurred in contravention of or 
that is not in accordance with a requirement of 
any applicable legislation, including   
• this Act; or
• the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 

of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of 
the Act; or

• any provincial legislation providing for 
procurement procedures in that provincial 
government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 
2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 
76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following 
(effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and 
identifi ed during the current fi nancial year and 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2013 2012

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation & 
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation & 
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fi xtures  427 373         (122 186)         305 187          407 369        (60 859) 346 510
Motor vehicles  475 459         (125 371)         350 088          475 459        (24 336)        451 123
Offi ce equipment  294 408           (87 946)         206 462          245 497        (42 289)        203 208
Computer equipment         1 641 442         (701 594)         939 848       1 124 850      (285 228)        839 622
Total            2 838 682      (1 037 097)      1 801 585       2 253 175      (412 712)     1 840 463

Reconciliation of movable assets – 2013 
Opening 
balance Additions Depreciation Total

Furniture and fi xtures               346 510           20 004        (61 327)       305 187
Motor vehicles               451 123  -      (101 035)        350 088
Offi ce equipment               203 208           48 911        (45 657)        206 462
Computer equipment              839 622         516 592      (416 366)         939 848
              1 840 463         585 507      (624 385)     1 801 585

Reconciliation of movable assets – 2012
Opening 
balance Additions

Additions 
through business 

combinations
Disposals Depreciation Carrying 

value

Furniture and fi xtures           -     9 644          397 725      -        (60 859)         346 510
Motor vehicles           -            360 937          221 620       (101 408)        (30 026)        451 123
Offi ce equipment           -              20 856          224 641                 -        (42 289)         203 208
Computer equipment          -            234 854          889 997                 -      (285 229)         839 622
             -            626 291       1 733 983       (101 408)      (418 403)     1 840 463

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation & 
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation & 
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software           843 625          (379 919)         463 706          671 426      (115 800)         555 626

Reconciliation of intangible assets   2013
Opening 
balance Additions Additions for no 

consideration Amortisation Total

Computer software              555 626            99 113            73 085      (264 118)         463 706

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2012

Opening 
balance Additions

Additions 
through business 

combinations
Amortisation Total

Computer software            -          353 446          867 980      (665 800)         555 626

2. MOVEABLE ASSETS
              2013      2012
                 R          R

4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES     
Trade receivables         31 064  100 359
Deposits          27 678    27 678
Prepaid expenses       381 900  119 061
Sundry debtors       192 339  195 896
Advances          93 846    93 846
Study advances       124 124  148 180
         850 951  685 020
   
Trade and other receivables impaired   
As of 31 March 2013, trade and other receivables of 
R 308 264 (2012: R308 264) were impaired and provided 
for. The provision relates to a debtor of the erstwhile 
KZN Gambling Board who failed to pay for services 
rendered, the entity has instituted legal proceedings 
to recover the amount.    
The ageing of these balances is as follows:   
 Over 6 months      308 264  308 264
   
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables   
Opening balance       308 264             -
Provision for impairment                   -   308 264
         308 264  308 264
   

5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS  
Trade payables               1 074 013  971 739 
Income received in advanced            12 340 957        13 310 488 
Third party accounts               1 110 704  429 703 
Sundry and accruals       441 135  466 657 
Betting Tax received in advance             1 170 279             - 
               16 137 088        15 178 587

Third party accounts refer to amounts payable on 
behalf of employees to South African Revenue 
Services, Provident Fund and Medical aid.     
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6. PROVISIONS   
Reconciliation of provisions   2013   

Opening 
balance

Net amounts 
utilised during 

the year
Closing 

balance

Leave pay provision      1 107 449           (89 392)    1 018 057

             2013   2012
                R      R

7. INVESTMENT REVENUE   
Interest revenue   
Bank                     1 644 611           1 853 751
   
Included in interest received is an amount of R466 804 
that accrued to the Building Fund (refer to note 18)  
 
   

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   
Relationships   
Board Members  Refer to note 15  
Controlling entity  Offi ce of the Premier  
Controlled entity  Horse Racing and Betting Transformation Fund  
   
Related party transactions   
Collection of betting tax on behalf of Province   
Offi ce of the Premier             112 889 117        88 650 016
   

9. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION   
Fees                    440 335  329 858
   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

              2013      2012
                 R          R
10. GENERAL EXPENSES
Audit committee fees      341 611   140 035 
Advertising, Publications and Public Hearings   688 085   462 849 
Auditors remuneration      440 335   329 858 
Bank charges        106 994   236 198 
Board Costs                2 695 926   963 279 
Cleaning          19 600     33 450 
Computer expenses       234 470       1 511 
Conferences and seminars      311 344   384 151 
Consulting and professional fees             1 127 875   828 857 
Consumables            4 962     36 798 
Electricity        163 711   150 652 
Entertainment                  -        5 150 
External meeting refreshments       53 477            - 
Fleet expenses       107 350   155 955 
Gifts                   -      20 905 
Illegal gambling operations             834            - 
Insurance        137 503   130 979 
Internal audit fee        (4 196)   493 568 
Lease rentals on operating lease             2 079 765           2 025 400 
Legal expenses               1 026 212   869 111 
Postage and courier         25 121     22 457 
Printing and stationery      405 910   287 333 
Probity and ITC costs       157 062     71 252 
Security            3 932       4 739 
Software expenses       188 310   174 047 
Storage and backup facilities       88 758     53 570 
Staff placement costs      977 110            - 
Staff welfare          75 719   131 028 
Subscriptions and membership fees       65 155   101 505 
Telephone and fax       382 737    396 539 
Training        281 112   131 028 
Travel   local                1 851 600             2 851 629 
Travel   overseas       796 217   246 727 
Venue expenses       107 871   392 612 
               14 942 472         12 133 172

11. MAJOR EVENTS   
Expenditure for hosting event     335 316            - 
Recoveries from ticket sales and sponsorships            (116 000)            - 
         219 316            - 
The costs incurred in hosting the events are part of the 
Board’s mandate to promote tourism within the Province 
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               2013      2012
                 R          R

12. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS   
Basic                20 166 271       16 324 235 
Medical aid benefi t       470 255             437 508 
UIF           95 148    73 617 
WCA         362 098    19 629 
SDL         255 609             196 449 
Leave pay provision / expense       49 762             552 925 
Provident fund contributions              2 481 175          1 765 760 
Subsistence allowance                -     18 562 
Long service awards           4 577  364 545 
13th Cheques        825 557  179 199 
Travel allowance               1 708 380           1 380 358 
Housing allowances       136 369  114 346 
Cell phone allowance      268 779  152 816 
               26 823 980        21 579 949
Remuneration of the Chief Executive Offi cer   
Annual Remuneration      900 000  298 821 
Travel Allowance       166 272           - 
Contributions to Medical and Pension Funds     85 275      1 497 
                 1 151 547  300 318 
Remuneration of Financial Manager   
Annual Remuneration      615 727  589 660 
Travel Allowance         44 000    62 972 
Contributions to Medical and Pension Funds     35 188    58 919 
         694 915  711 551 
During the year, the Finance Manager fulfi lled all roles 
and obligations required of the Chief Financial Offi cer. 

Remuneration of Senior Management   
Annual Remuneration              2 719 967          2 300 612
Travel Allowance       396 312  334 854 
Contributions to Medical and Pension Funds   260 924  262 962 
                 3 377 203          2 898 428 

13. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS   
Surplus (defi cit)               6 872 429         (4 176 104) 
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation and amortisation     888 504          1 084 202 
Profi t on sale of assets               -             (379 492) 
Debt impairment                -   308 264 
Movements in provisions      (89 392)           (254 563) 
Unrealised gain on acquisition of intangible assets   (73 085)           - 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

               2013       2012
                          R                    R

13. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Changes in working capital:    
Trade and other receivables              (165 931)           1 695 523
Consumer debtors                            -            (308 264)
Payables from exchange transactions              958 500           3 159 700
VAT                              -              (38 817)
                           8 391 025           1 090 449
14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   
Cash on hand              544         570
Bank balances                       28 757 209          34 071 099
Short term deposits                       13 020 321              -
                         41 778 074              34 071 669
The short term deposit relates to amounts retained for the 
Building Fund (refer to note 18). An amount of R137 922 had 
accrued at year end and had not been paid to the entity.
   
15. MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS   
Executive   
2013       Fees  Reimbursive Expenses Total
Mrs S.N. Zulu      562 000  80 520   642 520
Mrs P.D. Arnold-Mfusi     183 925  26 009   209 934
Mr A.H. Trikamjee       79 500    3 497     82 997
Prof. I.E. Konyn     320 100  44 022        364 122
Mr H. Oosthuizen     214 075  56 403   270 478
Mrs T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu    260 100  13 710   273 810
Mr P.Z. Dlamini     381 000  76 784   457 784
Dr T.I. Nzimakwe     280 500  25 140   305 640
Mrs N.D. Shabalala       81 000    7 641     88 641
               2 362 200           333 726           2 695 926
2012      
Mrs S.N. Zulu       98 600   10 729   109 329
Mrs P.D. Arnold-Mfusi      46 375     5 424     51 799
Mr A.H. Trikamjee      82 450     4 944     87 394
Prof. I.E. Konyn               131 400   14 504   145 904
Mr H. Oosthuizen     78 900   21 592   100 492
Mrs T.P. Mapipa-Ndlovu    68 250     4 644     72 894
Mr P.Z. Dlamini     72 150     9 802     81 952
Dr T.I. Nzimakwe     99 150     6 778        105 928
Mrs N.D. Shabalala     44 625     7 702     52 327
Prof. B.S. Stobie     49 800     8 689     58 489
Mr V.T. Xaba      67 100   13 722     80 822
Mr R. Moodley     15 400        305     15 705
                854 200            108 835   963 035
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              2013      2012
                 R          R

16. OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)   
Operating surplus (defi cit) for the year is stated 
after accounting for the following:   
Operating lease charges   
Premises   
 Contractual amounts      1 400 573   1 359 199
Equipment    
 Contractual amounts         348 528      372 086
 Contingent amounts         330 664      294 115
         2 079 765   2 025 400
   
Gain on sale of movable assets      -      379 492
Depreciation and amortisation        888 504   1 084 202
Employee costs                26 823 980            21 579 949
   

17. VAT RECEIVABLE   
VAT              38 817        38 817

The amount receivable from SARS relates to a refund that was 
due to the KwaZulu-Natal Bookmakers Control Committee. 
The entity is not required to be registered for VAT.  

18. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS   
Ring fenced internal funds and reserves within 
accumulated surplus – 2013   
         Building fund       Total
Amount approved by Provincial Treasury for retention  12 691 440                 12 691 440 
Interest received / accrued on investment          466 804         466 804 
Interest accrued in 2011/12 to be transferred to investment      584 652         584 652 
Interest accrued in 2012/13 to be transferred to investment      187 752         187 752 
         13 930 648                 13 930 648
   
Provincial Treasury approved the retention of previous 
surpluses amounting to R12,691,440 for the purpose of 
acquiring suitable offi ce accommodation for the entity. The 
funds are invested in short term deposits until such time as 
required (refer to note 14).   
   

19. GOVERNMENT GRANTS   
Grant received – Offi ce of the Premier    35 775 000              17 337 000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

              2013      2012
                 R          R

20. DEBT IMPAIRMENT   
Debt impairment               -   308 264
   

21. ENTITY COMBINATIONS   
KwaZulu-Natal Gambling Board and KwaZulu-Natal 
Bookmakers Control Committee   
On 01 April 2011 the entity acquired the assets and liabilities 
of the KwaZulu-Natal Gambling Board and KwaZulu-Natal 
Bookmakers Control Committee in terms of the KwaZulu-
Natal Gaming and Betting Act, Act 8 of 2010.
   
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed   

Movable assets               -    762 876 
Intangible assets               -    775 247 
Trade and other receivables              -            2 380 543 
Cash and cash equivalents              -          43 262 191 
Provisions                -         (1 362 012) 
Payables from exchange transactions            -         (3 697 559) 
Income received in advance             -         (8 152 800) 
Total identifi able net assets              -          33 968 486 
Surplus on acquisition               -       (33 968 486) 
                 -           - 

22. COMMITMENTS   
Operating leases as lessee (expense)   
Minimum lease payments due    
   within one year               1 180 540           1 130 494 
   in second to fi fth year inclusive             1 347 392           2 439 561 
                 2 527 932           3 570 055 
Operating lease payments represent rentals 
payable by the entity for certain of its equipment 
and offi ce properties.  
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              2013      2012
                 R          R

23. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE   
Interest and penalties      272 762         - 

Interest and penalties were incurred in the settlement of 
outstanding liabilities of the erstwhile KwaZulu-Natal Gambling 
Board. The liabilities related to amounts owing to the South 
African Revenue Services for previous fi nancial years. The 
Board assumed responsibility for all outstanding liabilities of the 
previous entities. The matter is being investigated.

24. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN BUDGET AND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   
Reconciliation of budget surplus/defi cit with the 
surplus/defi cit in the statement of fi nancial performance: 

Net surplus (defi cit) per the statement 
of fi nancial performance              6 872 429        (4 176 104) 
Adjusted for:    
Additional revenue generated              (195 972)           - 
Purchase of movable assets               (684 620)         - 
Proceeds from disposal of motor vehicles             -            (480 800) 
Decrease in provisions        89 392  254 563 
Increase in nett expenditure for KZNBCC operations           -           4 094 077 
Provision for doubtful debts               -   308 264 
Savings realised on compensation of employees            (887 011)           - 
Savings realised on goods and services          (3 722 969)           - 
Prepaid expenses                (381 900)           - 
Amounts not spent for purchase of movable assets           (898 640)           - 
Accrued income                (137 922)           - 
Net unrealised gain on acquisition of intangible assets  (52 787)            - 
Net surplus per approved budget              -            - 

25. GUARANTEES ISSUED   
Zelpy 1003 (Pty) Ltd       250 000 250 000 
Durban Unicity                -       1 612 
         250 000  251 612 

The Board has issued a guarantee in favour of Zelpy 1003 (Pty) Ltd for the rental of the building located 
at 3 Nollsworth Park, Nollsworth Crescent, Umhlanga.  The guarantee for Durban Unicity was cancelled 
during the year.   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
       Note       2013      2012
                 R          R
Revenue     
Fees earned              12 536 647        11 394 083 
Commissions received          1 567      2 917 
Unrealised gain on acquisition of intangible asset     73 085                 -
Government grants         19        35 775 000        17 337 000 
Interest income           7           1 644 611          1 853 751 
Total Revenue               50 030 910        30 587 751 
    
Expenditure     
Personnel          12        26 823 980        21 579 949 
Depreciation and amortisation     888 504          1 084 202 
Interest and penalties      272 762            -
Debt impairment         20            -              308 264 
Repairs and maintenance        11 447    37 760 
General expenses         10        14 942 472        12 133 172 
Major events          11  219 316           -
Total Expenditure              43 158 481        35 143 347 
    
Total revenue              50 030 910         30 587 751 
Total expenditure           (43 158 481)      (35 143 347)
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities              -              379 492 
Surplus / (Defi cit) for the year             6 872 429       (4 176 104) 
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CONTACT INFORMATION
Details Pietermaritzburg Durban

Postal Address Private Bag X9102
Pietermaritzburg
3200
South Africa

P O Box 555
Umhlanga Rocks
4320
South Africa

Physical Address 330 Langalibalele Street
Pietermaritzburg
3201
South Africa

3 Nollsworth Park
Armstrong Avenue
La Lucia Ridge
South Africa

Telephone +27 (0)33 345 2714 +27 (0)31 583 1800

Facsimile +27 (0)33 342 7853 +27 (0)31 583 1820

Email info@kzngambling.co.za

Web www.kzngbb.org.za


